

Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 \$56,125,000 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005, \$58,590,000 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006, and \$19,320,000 Special Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 Continuing Disclosure Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2021-22 (per SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5))

#### **CUSIP Numbers**

#### Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005

66704PAA2*	66704PAF1*	66704PAL8*
66704PAB0*	66704PAG9*	66704PAM6*
66704PAC8*	66704PAH7*	66704PAN4*
66704PAD6*	66704PAJ3*	66704PAP9
66704PAE4*	66704PAK0*	66704PAQ7

#### Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006

66704PAR5*	66704PAW4*	66704PBB9*
66704PAS3*	66704PAX2*	66704PBC7*
66704PAT1*	66704PAY0*	66704PBD5*
66704PAU8*	66704PAZ7*	66704PBE3
66704PAV6*	66704PBA1*	

#### Special Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2014

66704PBS2*	66704PBJ2*	66704PBN3
66704PBF0*	66704PBK9*	66704PBP8
66704PBG8*	66704PBL7	66704PBQ6
66704PBH6*	66704PBM5	66704PBR4

\* Retired as of the date of this report.

January 27, 2023

655 UNIVERSITY AVE, SUITE 200 • SACRAMENTO, CA 95825 PHONE: (916) 561-0890 • FAX: (916) 561-0891 WWW.GOODWINCONSULTINGGROUP.NET

# **Table of Contents**

<u>Sectio</u>	<u>on</u>	Page
I.	Introduction	
II.	Financial and	l Operating Information 2
III.	Reporting of	Significant Events 5
APPE	NDIX A:	Northstar Community Services District Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2021-22
APPE	NDIX B:	Fund Balances for Fiscal Year 2021-22
APPE	NDIX C:	Delinquency Information for Fiscal Year 2021-22
APPE	NDIX D:	Estimated Value-to-Lien Ratios for Fiscal Year 2021-22
APPE	NDIX E:	Updated Table 9 from the Series 2014 Bonds Official Statement
APPE	NDIX F:	California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission Mello-Roos Yearly Fiscal Status Reports for Fiscal Year 2021-22

## I. Introduction

This report contains certain information required to be filed annually per SEC rule 15c2-12 (b)(5) (the "Rule") by the Northstar Community Services District (the "CSD") Community Facilities District No. 1 (the "CFD") and certain other information which may be of interest to investors in the CFD Special Tax Bonds. The Rule is applicable to the Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005 (the "Series 2005 Bonds") issued in the aggregate amount of \$56,125,000 on December 20, 2005, the Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006 (the "Series 2006 Bonds") issued in the aggregate amount of \$58,590,000 on December 20, 2006, and to the Special Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (the "Series 2014 Bonds") issued in the aggregate amount of \$19,320,000 on July 30, 2014, (collectively, the "Bonds"). The Rule requires that an issuer undertake in a written agreement or contract for the benefit of holders of the securities issued to file with national and state repositories the following:

- 1. Certain financial and operating information as presented in the Continuing Disclosure Agreements
- 2. Audited financial statements
- 3. Notice of certain enumerated significant events
- 4. Notice of any failure to provide such annual financial information as agreed

To comply with the Rule, the CFD agreed in the Continuing Disclosure Agreements (the "Agreements") associated with the Bonds to provide certain information annually for the benefit of the bondholders. The CFD has also agreed to disclose the occurrence of several significant events with respect to the Bonds, should they occur.

Section 4 of the Agreements requires the CSD to provide the following items:

(1) The audited financial statements of the CFD for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, which may be included in the audited financial statements of the CSD. Audited financial statements of the CFD shall be audited by such auditor as shall then be required or permitted by state law or the Trust Indenture. Audited financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as prescribed for governmental units by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board; provided, however, that the CFD may from time to time, if required by federal or state legal requirements, modify the basis upon which its financial statements are prepared.

## > See Appendix A

- (2) The principal amount of Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2006 Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2022.
  - Series 2005 Bonds outstanding: \$47,137,316
  - Series 2006 Bonds outstanding: \$41,378,235
- (3) The principal amount of Series 2014 Bonds outstanding as of September 2, 2022.

## Series 2014 Bonds outstanding: \$9,339,319

(4) The balance in each fund under the Trust Indenture for the Bonds.

## See Appendix B

- (5) Special tax delinquency information as shown on the assessment roll of the Placer County Assessor last equalized prior to September 30, 2022:
  - (i) Special tax delinquency rate for all parcels levied a special tax as of June 16, 2022.
    - > Delinquency rate for fiscal year 2021-22: 76.70%
  - (ii) Number of parcels that are delinquent as of June 16, 2022.
    - > Number of parcels delinquent for fiscal year 2021-22: 26
  - (iii) Amount of each delinquency and length of time delinquent.

## See Appendix C

(6) An update of the estimated value-to-lien ratios, based on the assessed values within the CFD and the special tax levy for fiscal year 2021-22.

## See Appendix D

(7) An update to Table 9 in the Official Statement for the Series 2014 Bonds, based on the assessed values within the CFD and the special tax levy for fiscal year 2021-22.

## See Appendix E

(8) Any changes to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax (the "RMA") approved or submitted to the qualified electors for approval prior to the filing of the Annual Report.

## > No changes have been made to the RMA during fiscal year 2021-22.

(9) The status of any foreclosure actions being pursued by the CFD with respect to delinquent special taxes.

## Please see the voluntary disclosure provided by the CFD to EMMA on September 9, 2021 at the following URL: https://emma.msrb.org/P11524533-P11179093-P11595542.pdf

(10) Any information not already included under (2) through (7) above that the Board of Directors of the CSD is required to file in its Annual Report to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended.

## ➢ See Appendix F

- (11) A description of any transfers in property in fiscal year 2021-22 and the first half year of 2022-23 which results in taxable property being reclassified as exempt from the special tax under Section H of the RMA.
  - No such transfers have occurred in fiscal year 2021-22 or in the first half year of 2022-23.

(12) A description of any transfers in property in fiscal year 2021-22 and the first half year of 2022-23 which results in property exempt from the special tax under Section F of the RMA being reclassified as taxable property.

## No such transfers have occurred in fiscal year 2021-22 or in the first half year of 2022-23.

- (13) Such further information, if any, as may be necessary to make the statements specifically required pursuant to this Section 4(b) in the Agreements, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading.
  - > No such information is necessary at this time.

- (a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of the Agreements, the CFD shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:
- i. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
- ii. Non-payment related defaults.
- iii. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.
- iv. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.
- v. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.
- vi. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.
- vii. Issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability or of Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB).
- viii. Tender offers.
- ix. Modifications to rights of security holders.
- x. Bond calls.
- xi. Defeasances.
- xii. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds.
- xiii. Rating changes.
- xiv. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings.
  - On February 28, 2022, the CFD provided notice of a partial payment of debt service in the amount of \$1,000,000. Such funds were distributed to holders of the Bonds on March 1, 2022.
  - On March 11, 2022 and September 7, 2022, the CFD provided notice of principal and interest payment delinquencies affecting the Bonds due to significant delinquencies in payment of the special tax.
  - On November 16, 2022, the CFD provided notice of a partial payment of debt service in the amount of \$1,886,000. Such funds were distributed to holders of the Bonds on November 21, 2022.
- (b) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of the Agreement, the CFD shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:
  - i. Unless described in 5(a)(5) of the Agreements executed in connection with the Series 2014 Bonds, notices of determinations by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax status of the Bonds or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;
  - ii. The consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms;

- iii. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name of a trustee;
- iv. Nonpayment related defaults;
- v. Modifications to the rights of owners of the Bonds;
- vi. Notices of redemption; and
- vii. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds.
  - On July 21, 2022, the CFD provided notice that it had appointed UMB Bank, N.A. as Successor Trustee for the Bonds.

# **APPENDIX** A

Northstar Community Services District Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2021-22



#### FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

JAMES MARTA & COMPANY LLP Certified Public Accountants

701 Howe Avenue, E3 Sacramento, CA

(916) 993-9494 (916) 993-9489 Fax www.jpmcpa.com

## JUNE 30, 2022

## **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

Warren Brown - President

Mike Moll – Vice President

Mike Witherspoon - Financial Representative

Nancy Ives – Director

Marilyn Forni - Director

\* \* \* \*

General Manager Mike Staudenmayer

Director of Finance and Administration Greg Rosenthal

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	12
Statement of Activities	13
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds	14
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet To the Statement of Net Position	15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	16
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities	17
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds	18
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds	19
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds	20
Statement of Net Position – Internal Service Funds	21
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Internal Service Funds	22
Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds	23
Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary Funds	24
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements	25

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### JUNE 30, 2022

## **REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION**

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual – General Fund	51
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios	52
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability	53
Schedule of Pension Contributions	54
Notes to Required Supplementary Information	55
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Combining Statement of Net Position – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds	56
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds	57

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities – Fiduciary Funds	59

58

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary – Enterprise Funds

# J

## James Marta & Company LLP Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

## **INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT**

Board of Directors Northstar Community Services District Truckee, California

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Northstar Community Services District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, cash flows and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Northstar Community Services District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller's Office and state regulations governing special districts.

## **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller's *Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts*. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Northstar Community Services District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements**

Northstar Community Services District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northstar Community Services District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Northstar Community Services District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northstar Community Services District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of Pension Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### **Other Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated April 5, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

James Marta + Company LLP

James Marta & Company LLP Certified Public Accountants Sacramento, California April 5, 2023

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

This discussion and analysis section of the Northstar Community Services District's (District or NCSD) Financial Statements is intended to provide a narrative overview and analysis of the basic financial activities of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which follow this section.

## FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide
-----------------

Ouvernment-wide	
• Total net position at June 30, 2022	\$ 106,743,303
• Total revenue:	18,126,024
• Total expense:	12,053,024
• Total depreciation expense:	2,119,874
Business-Type Activities	
• Water	
o Total revenue:	\$ 4,101,262
o Total expense:	3,278,749
• Sewer	
o Total revenue:	2,991,358
o Total expense:	1,876,042
Solid Waste	
o Total revenue:	629,067
o Total expense:	474,461
Governmental Activities	
• Total revenue:	\$ 10,404,337
• Total expense:	6,423,772

#### **OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

**Government-wide Financial Statements** present a broad overview of the District's finances. Within this view, all District operations are categorized and reported as either governmental or business-type activities. These government-wide statements are designed to be more business-like in that all activities are consolidated and provide a snapshot of the District as a whole.

- The STATEMENT OF NET POSITION focuses on resources available for future operations. In simple terms, this statement presents a snapshot of the total assets and total liabilities of the District and the net difference. The net difference is further separated into amounts invested in capital assets (net of related debt), amounts that are restricted for capital projects, and amounts that are unrestricted.
- The STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES focuses on the costs of the District's programs and the extent to which the programs rely on property taxes and other revenues. This statement simplifies the user's analysis when determining the extent to which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general revenue.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

Both previously mentioned government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally supported by taxes (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include general government, fire, fuels management, roads maintenance, snow removal, and trails maintenance. The business-type activities of the District include water, sewer, and solid waste.

**Fund Financial Statements** focus on the individual parts of the District and report operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District's most significant funds. The fund financial statements separately focus on governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

• <u>Governmental funds</u> are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements to gain a better understanding of the long-term impact of near-term financing decisions. Both the BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS and the STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities represented by the government-wide financial statements.

Information is presented separately in the BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS and the STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS for the General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial activities of the Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District (CFD) #1, whose purpose was to fund the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities within the District.

• <u>Proprietary Funds</u> are used to account for activities by which the District provides goods or services on a fee basis. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The types of proprietary funds utilized by the District are enterprise funds and internal service funds.

• Enterprise funds provide goods or services to the public for a fee. Enterprise funds report on the same business-type activities shown in the government-wide financial statements. The intent is that the cost of providing services will be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The District uses enterprise funds to account for water, sewer, and solid waste operations.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

- Internal service funds account for goods and services provided on a cost-reimbursement basis by one department to another department within the District. The District uses internal service funds to account for Engineering & Utility Operations, Fleet, and Administrative Operations.
- <u>Fiduciary Funds</u> are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the District's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The types of fiduciary funds utilized by the District are agency funds. Agency Funds are used to account for the assets held by the District as an agent for the CFD.

**Notes to the basic financial statements** provide additional disclosures required by governmental accounting standards and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the District's financial condition.

**Required supplementary information** provides a budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund in the STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board set out to improve pension accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments through Statement Number 68 (GASB 68) which took effect for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, and Statement Number 75 (GASB 75) which took effect for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.

As a result of the implementation of GASB 68, two schedules were added to the required supplementary information section. The two schedules are the SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY and the SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS. Both are 10-year schedules and will present years as they become available until 10 years are shown.

As a result of the implementation of GASB 75, another schedule was added to the required supplementary information section, the SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS. As with the previously mentioned schedules, this is also a 10-year schedule and will present years as they become available until 10 years are shown.

**Supplementary information** provides Combining Statements of NET POSITION; REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION; AND CASH FLOWS for the Proprietary – Enterprise Funds. It also includes a schedule showing receipt and disbursement activity for the 2005 series CFD bonds, 2006 series CFD bonds, and 2014 series CFD Refunding Bonds as represented by the STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR FIDUCIARY FUNDS.

#### FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

One of the most important questions to be asked about the District's finances is "Is the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Table A-2) reports information about the District's activities in a way that will help answer this question. The STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Table A-1) presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

The STATEMENT OF NET POSITION and the STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES report the net position and the changes in net position, respectively, the for the District. However, considerations should also be given to other nonfinancial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed governmental legislation.

A summary of the District's STATEMENT OF NET POSITION comparing the current and prior fiscal years is presented in Table A-1. Table A-1

	S	tatement of Net I 6/30/2022	Position					
	Governmen	Governmental Activities Business-type Activities				Totals		
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021		
ASSETS						1		
Current assets	\$15,700,581	\$ 9,686,788	\$26,711,267	\$23,227,809	\$ 42,411,848	\$ 32,914,597		
Capital assets	26,128,070	26,455,687	48,424,632	49,682,910	74,552,702	76,138,597		
Total Assets	41,828,651	36,142,475	75,135,899	72,910,719	116,964,550	109,053,194		
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES								
Total deferred outflows	5,122,405	4,607,154	-	-	5,122,405	4,607,154		
LIABILITIES								
Current liabilities	4,063,178	2,596,352	640,376	507,631	4,703,554	3,103,983		
Noncurrent liabilities	8,257,173	6,431,399	-	-	8,257,173	6,431,399		
Total liabilities	12,320,351	9,027,751	640,376	507,631	12,960,727	9,535,382		
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES								
Total deferred inflows	2,382,925	2,779,121	-	-	2,382,925	2,779,121		
NET POSITION								
Investment in capital assets, net								
of related debt	22,158,070	22,380,687	50,327,553	51,710,111	72,485,623	74,090,798		
Restricted for capital replacement	-	-	12,649,063	10,889,112	12,649,063	10,889,112		
Unrestricted	10,089,710	6,562,070	11,518,907	9,803,865	21,608,617	16,365,935		
Total net position	\$32,247,780	\$28,942,757	\$74,495,523	\$72,403,088	\$106,743,303	\$101,345,845		

As shown in Table A-1 on the preceding page, *Total net position* amounted to \$106.7MM in fiscal year 2022. The major component of this category is *Investment in capital assets, net of related debt* which represents the District's investment in capital assets, net of the amount borrowed to purchase those assets. *Total net position* increased by \$5.4MM due to an increase *Assets* accompanied by a decrease in *Liabilities*.

*Total assets* for Governmental Activities increased by \$5.7MM. This was mostly due to an increase in *Net pension asset.* Total assets for business-type activities increased by \$2.2MM mainly due to an increase in *Cash and cash equivalents* and *Investments*. These detailed impacts are not represented in Table A-1 above but can be seen in the full STATEMENT OF NET POSITION. Overall, those impacts combined to cause an increase in *Capital assets*.

Overall liabilities for governmental activities increased by \$3.3MM mainly due to a reduction in *Long-term Liabilities*, and more specifically, those *Due in longer than one year*. Overall liabilities for business-type activities increased by \$133K mainly due to an increase in the amount *Due to internal service fund*. As was the case with assets, these detailed impacts can be seen in the full STATEMENT OF NET POSITION.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

A condensed version of the STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES comparing the current and prior fiscal years is presented in Table A-2.

Table A 2

		Table A-2				
		Statement of Acti	vities			
		6/30/2022				
	Governmental Activities		Business-type Activities		Totals	
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021
REVENUE						
General Revenue						
Property taxes	\$ 5,439,356	\$ 5,186,791			\$ 5,439,356	\$ 5,186,791
Fuels management & streets assessments	796,038	763,185			796,038	763,185
Capital Contributions	-	-	\$ 127,875	\$ -	127,875	-
Interest earnings	(264,606)	795,814	(446,819)	149,308	(711,425)	945,122
Miscellaneous	262,553	73,913	112,329	69,281	374,882	143,194
Total general revenue	6,233,341	6,819,703	(206,615)	218,589	6,026,726	7,038,292
Program Revenues						
Charges for services	801,902	657,786	7,912,375	7,797,039	8,714,277	8,454,825
Operating Grants amd Contributions	2,839,882	1,025,225	15,927	-	2,855,809	1,025,225
Total program revenue	3,641,784	1,683,011	7,928,302	7,797,039	11,570,086	9,480,050
Total revenue	9,875,125	8,502,714	7,721,687	8,015,628	17,596,812	16,518,342
EXPENSES						
General government	102,175	359,975			102,175	359,975
Public safety	3,077,382	4,883,913			3,077,382	4,883,913
Streets	538,230	533,453			538,230	533,453
Trails	2,060,984	406,881			2,060,984	406,881
Unallocated depreciation	645,001	633,671			645,001	633,671
Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste			5,629,252	6,941,213	5,629,252	6,941,213
Total expenses	6,423,772	6,817,893	5,629,252	6,941,213	12,053,024	13,759,106
CHANGE IN NET POSITION	3,451,353	1,684,821	2,092,435	1,074,415	5,543,788	2,759,236
NET POSITION, beginning of year	28,796,427	27,257,936	72,403,088	71,328,673	101,199,515	98,586,609
NET POSITION, end of year	\$ 32,247,780	\$ 28,942,757	\$ 74,495,523	\$ 72,403,088	\$ 106,743,303	\$ 101,345,845

While the STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Table A-1) shows the position of net assets, the STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES provides answers as to the nature and source of these changes.

#### Governmental activities:

General revenue from *Property taxes* and *Fuels management & streets assessments* increased 4.9% and 4.3%, respectively over the prior year amounts which helped offset a \$264K loss in *Interest earnings* which ultimately resulted in a decrease in *Total general revenue* of \$586K.

*Program revenues* increased by 116.4% due to an increase in *Operating Grants and Contributions*. Overall expenses were down by 5.8% mostly due to expenditures associated with a reduction in project activity.

#### **Business-Type activities:**

General revenue decreased by 194.5% mainly due to a \$596K decrease in *Interest earnings* while *Program revenues* showed an increase of 1.7% due to a \$115K increase in *Charges for services*. Overall, expenses across the water, sewer, and solid waste divisions were 18.9% lower than the prior year.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2022

#### **BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS**

Each year the District Board of Directors adopts an annual operating and capital budget. The operating budget includes proposed expenses and the means of financing them. The budget remains in effect the entire year but may be revised by the Board of Directors as required. Budget vs. actual reports are provided to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis and to management on a monthly basis.

Table A-3 shows current and prior fiscal year Budget vs. Actual comparison for the General Fund

	Bi	idget vs. Actual - C	Jeneral Fund			
		6/30/2022	2			
					Varia	ance
	Bue	dget	Act	tual	Favorable / (Unfavorable)	
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021
Revenue						
Taxes and assessments	\$ 6,233,200	\$ 6,095,900	\$ 6,235,394	\$ 5,949,976	\$ 2,194	\$ (145,924)
Fees and other non-tax revenue	582,169	423,618	795,545	653,364	213,376	229,746
Interest	145,150	177,840	(46,100)	309,711	(191,250)	131,871
Fire mitigation fees	6,000	12,000	6,357	4,422	357	(7,578)
Reimbursable revenues	5,212,191	2,079,434	3,057,726	1,091,339	(2,154,465)	(988,095)
Other	268,260	163,297	262,555	73,913	(5,705)	(89,384)
Total revenue	12,446,970	8,952,089	10,311,477	8,082,725	(2,135,493)	(869,364)
Expenditures						
General Government	186,553	91,900	102,175	359,975	84,378	(268,075)
Public Safety	6,875,438	6,549,798	6,443,289	6,293,041	432,149	256,757
Streets	591,751	751,771	570,074	533,453	21,677	218,318
Trails	4,093,624	1,129,051	2,060,984	406,881	2,032,640	722,170
Total expenditures	11,747,366	8,522,520	9,176,522	7,593,350	2,570,844	929,170
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before other sources	699,604	429,569	1,134,955	489,375	435,351	59,806
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other sources over expenditures	\$ 699,604	\$ 429,569	\$ 1,134,955	\$ 489,375	\$ 435,351	\$ 59,806

Table A-3 Budget vs. Actual - General Fund 6/30/2022

The District budgeted \$12.4MM in general fund revenue and recognized \$10.3MM. The District budgeted \$11.7MM in general fund expenditures and recognized \$9.2MM.

The unfavorable revenue budget to actual variance of \$2.1MM was mainly due to *Reimbursable revenues* being \$2.2MM under budget due to grant funded trails activity being less than anticipated. The favorable expenditure budget to actual variance of \$2.6MM was mainly due to decreased expenditures also within the trails division as compared to budget.

Overall, when comparing actual *Excess (deficiency) of revenue* to budgeted expectations, there is a favorable variance of \$435K.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### CAPITAL ASSETS

A comparison of Capital Assets for the current and prior fiscal years is presented in Table A-4.

Table A-4 Capital Assets at June 30, 2022

	EX 2022	FY 2021		Dollar	Percentage
	 FY 2022		FT 2021	 Change	Change
Governmental Activities					
Land	\$ 7,598,216	\$	7,598,216	\$ -	0%
Work in progress					
General fund	297,698		52,522	245,176	467%
Capital projects fund	-		-	-	-
Buildings and improvements	21,365,161		21,365,161	-	0%
Equipment	1,583,423		1,563,507	19,916	1%
Vehicles and equipment	4,312,932		4,260,640	52,292	1%
Software	 78,587	_	78,587	 -	0%
	 35,236,017		34,918,633	 317,384	1%
Less accumulated depreciation	 (9,107,947)		(8,462,946)	 (645,001)	
Governmental activities capital assets, net	 26,128,070		26,455,687	 (327,617)	-1%
Business-type Activities					
Land	748,907		748,907	-	0%
Work in progress	-		50,565	(50,565)	-100%
Buildings and improvements	22,568,616		22,568,616	-	0%
Equipment	1,588,418		1,554,671	33,747	2%
Vehicles and equipment	874,858		874,858	-	0%
Software	258,370		258,370	-	0%
Water/sewer system	 51,470,438		51,237,025	 233,413	0%
	77,509,607		77,293,012	216,595	0%
Less accumulated depreciation	 (29,084,975)		(27,610,102)	 (1,474,873)	5%
Business-type activities capital assets, net	48,424,632		49,682,910	(1,258,278)	-3%
Dusmess-type activities capital assets, net	 +0,424,032		47,002,710	 (1,230,270)	-3%
Totals	\$ 74,552,702	\$	76,138,597	\$ (1,585,895)	-2%

As indicated by Table A-4, the combined net capital assets of Governmental and Business-type Activities decreased by \$1.6MM after considering accumulated depreciation. Governmental activities show an increase of \$317K before accumulated depreciation mostly due to an increase in *Work in progress*.

Business-type activities show an increase of \$217K before accumulated depreciation mostly due to additions to *Water/Sewer system* infrastructure.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

The District's long-term liabilities at year-end included *Net OPEB Liability* for employees totaling \$2.4MM. The long-term portion of *Retiree Termination Benefits* is \$96K, with \$15K due within one year. *Net pension liability* totaled \$5.4MM, and long-term liabilities for *Compensated Absences* totaled \$1.5MM.

Lastly, the long-term liability of the NCSD Financing Authority (NCSD-FA), a joint exercise of Powers Authority (JPA) formed by the NCSD and the NCSD Community Facilities District #1 in 2015, totaled \$4.0MM in general long-term debt with \$110K being due within one year.

#### DEBT WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITTMENT

During 2005 and 2006, bonded debt was issued by a special assessment district known as the Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District #1 (NCSD CFD#1 or CFD) to finance infrastructure improvements and facilities within the Northstar area. In July of 2014, the NCSD CFD #1 issued Special Tax Refunding bonds to refund a portion of the 2005 and 2006 series bonds and cover the costs associated with the issue.

The District has no legal responsibility with respect to the re-payment of the debt associated with either bond issue. However, the District is responsible for managing a portion of the construction and improvements financed by the CFD and it is also responsible as the CFD's agent for the receipts and disbursements of the CFD.

At June 30, 2022, the principal amount of outstanding debt for the CFD was \$97.7MM.

#### ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The District will continue to budget conservatively for general fund revenues in anticipation that the assessed value of property within the District will not increase significantly in the upcoming year. Business-type revenue is expected to increase due to the District entering the fourth year of a five-year increasing rate structure for water, sewer, and solid waste services within the Northstar community and water service within the Martis Valley community.

The District will continue to be mindful of expenditures and look for ways to capitalize on trends that will allow for economies of scale and the more efficient use of resources.

#### **REQUEST FOR INFORMATION**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all interested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Greg Rosenthal, CPA, Director of Finance and Administration, Northstar Community Services District, 900 Northstar Drive, Truckee, California 96161.

**BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS** 

## STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

	Governmental Activities	Business-type Activities	Total
ASSETS			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 5,720,405	\$ 13,579,111	\$ 19,299,516
Investments	1,829,513	9,966,248	11,795,761
Accounts receivable	1,842,341	857,719	2,700,060
Inventory	18,595	-	18,595
Due from other governments	337,552	134,600	472,152
Due from enterprise funds	517,092	-	517,092
Prepaid expenses	77	121,783	121,860
Long-Term Assets			
Net pension asset	5,435,006	-	5,435,006
Note receivable	-	2,051,806	2,051,806
Capital assets, net	26,128,070	48,424,632	74,552,702
Total assets	41,828,651	75,135,899	116,964,550
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES			
Deferred outflows on OPEB	470,557	-	470,557
Deferred outflows on pensions	4,651,848		4,651,848
Total deferred outflows of resources	5,122,405	-	5,122,405
LIABILITIES			
Accounts payable	1,780,911	90,955	1,871,866
Accrued wages and related items			
Accrued liabilities	193,483	29,329	222,812
Due to internal service fund	-	517,092	517,092
Unearned revenue	320,772	3,000	323,772
Long-Term Liabilities:			
Due within one year	1,768,012	-	1,768,012
Due in longer than one year	8,257,173		8,257,173
Total liabilities	12,320,351	640,376	12,960,727
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES			
Deferred inflows on OPEB	588,783	-	588,783
Deferred inflows on pensions	1,794,142	_	1,794,142
Total deferred inflows of resources	2,382,925	-	2,382,925
NET POSITION			
Net investment in capital assets	22,158,070	50,327,553	72,485,623
Restricted for capital projects	-	12,649,063	12,649,063
Unrestricted	10,089,710	11,518,907	21,608,617
Total net position	\$ 32,247,780	\$ 74,495,523	\$ 106,743,303

## **STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

				Program Revenues			N	Net (Expense) F	Rever	ue and Change	s in N	let Position
Functions		Frances	C	Operating Charges for Grants and Services Contributions		Governmental		Business Type			Total	
		Expenses		Services				Activities		Activities	Total	
Governmental activities:	¢	100 175	¢		¢		¢	(100.175)	¢		¢	(100 175)
General government	\$	102,175	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(102,175)	\$	-	\$	(102,175)
Public safety		3,077,382		801,902		315,752		(1,959,728)		-		(1,959,728)
Streets		538,230		-		639,522		101,292		-		101,292
Trails		2,060,984		-		1,884,608		(176,376)		-		(176,376)
Unallocated depreciation		645,001		-		-		(645,001)		-		(645,001)
Total governmental activities	\$	6,423,772	\$	801,902	\$	2,839,882		(2,781,988)		-		(2,781,988)
Business-type activities:												
Water	\$	3,278,749	\$	4,251,318	\$	15,927				988,496		988,496
Sewer		1,876,042		3,031,990		-				1,155,948		1,155,948
Solid waste		474,461		629,067		-				154,606		154,606
Total business-type activities	\$	5,629,252	\$	7,912,375	\$	15,927				2,299,050		2,299,050
	Ger	neral revenues:										
		Property taxes	5					5,439,356		-		5,439,356
		Fuels manager	ment a	and streets asse	essmei	nts		796,038		-		796,038
		Capital contrib	outions					-		127,875		127,875
		Interest earnin	ıgs (lo	sses)				(264,606)		(446,819)		(711,425)
		Miscellaneous	reven	ue				262,553		112,329		374,882
	Tot	al general reve	nue					6,233,341		(206,615)		6,026,726
	Cha	ange in net posi	ition					3,451,353		2,092,435		5,543,788
		position, begin						28,796,427		72,403,088		101,199,515
		position, begin	•				\$	32,247,780	\$	74,495,523	\$	106,743,303
	1101	Position, end c	n year				Ψ	52,277,700	Ψ	,т,т <i>у</i> ,525	Ψ	100,745,505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

## **BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS**

ASSETS	General Fund		Capital Projects Fund		Building Fund		Gov	Total vernmental Funds
Assets								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	6,900,962	\$	1,533,239	\$	40	\$	8,434,241
Investments		1,829,513		-	·	-		1,829,513
Accounts receivables		1,744,953		-		-		1,744,953
Due from other governments		337,552		-		-		337,552
Total Assets	\$	10,812,980	\$	1,533,239	\$	40	\$	12,346,259
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities Accounts payable Due to other funds	\$	614,897 333,550	\$	-	\$	-	\$	614,897 333,550
Other accrued expenses		136,201		-		-		136,201
Unearned revenue		320,772		-		-		320,772
Total Liabilities		1,405,420		-		-		1,405,420
Fund Balance								
Committed		4,106,296		1,533,239		40		5,639,575
Unassigned		5,301,264		-		-		5,301,264
Total Fund Balance		9,407,560		1,533,239		40		10,940,839
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance	\$	10,812,980	\$	1,533,239	\$	40	\$	12,346,259

## **RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET** TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

otal Fund Balance - Governmental Funds	\$ 10,940,839
mounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are fferent because:	
Capital assets: in governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.	
Capital assets at cost Accumulated depreciation Net pension (liability)/asset	35,236,017 (9,107,947) 5,435,006
Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:	
Compensated absences	(1,494,127)
Retiree termination benefits	(96,378)
Other postemployment benefits	(2,412,874)
Lease revenue bonds payable	(3,970,000)
Note payable to sewer fund	(2,051,806)
Internal service funds: Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Because internal service funds are presumed to operate for the benefit of governmental activities, assets and liabilities of internal service funds are reported with governmental activities in the statement of net position. Net position for internal service funds is:	343,144
Long-term liabilities already recognized in internal service funds Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pension are reported.	(1,813,982)
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions	4,651,848
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB	470,557
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions	(1,794,142)
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB	(588,783)
Net deferred outflows and inflows of resources already recognized in	
internal service funds	 (1,499,592)
otal net position - Governmental Activities:	\$ 32,247,780

## STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

			Cap	ital Projects			
	General Fund		Fund		Building Fund		 Total
REVENUE							
Taxes and assessments	\$	6,235,394	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 6,235,394
Fees and other non-tax revenue		795,545		-		-	795,545
Interest		(46,100)		181,954		38	135,892
Fire mitigation fees		6,357		-		-	6,357
Grant revenue		217,844		-		-	217,844
Reimbursable revenue		2,839,882		-		-	2,839,882
Other		262,555		-		263,298	 525,853
Total revenue		10,311,477		181,954		263,336	 10,756,767
EXPENDITURES							
General government		102,175		-		-	102,175
Public safety		6,443,289		-		-	6,443,289
Streets		570,074		-		-	570,074
Trails		2,060,984		-		-	2,060,984
Building expenses		-		-		263,300	 263,300
Total expenditures		9,176,522				263,300	 9,439,822
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures		1,134,955		181,954		36	 1,316,945
Net change in fund balances		1,134,955		181,954		36	1,316,945
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year		8,272,605		1,351,285		4	 9,623,894
FUND BALANCE, end of year	\$	9,407,560	\$	1,533,239	\$	40	\$ 10,940,839

## RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	\$ 1,316,945
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:	
Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is: Expenditures for capital outlay Depreciation expense	317,384 (645,001)
Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were:	228,146
Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and earned was: Pensions: In government funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made, in the statement of activites pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was:	(9,467) 2,893,531
Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual basis. The difference between OPEB costs paid and earned was:	(249,688)
Internal service funds: Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Because internal service funds are presumed to benefit governmental activities, internal service activities are reported as governmental in the statement of activities. The net increase or decrease in internal service funds was:	(400,497)
Change in net position of governmental activities:	\$ 3,451,353

## STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

## **PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	Total
Current assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 13,579,111
Accounts receivable	857,719
Note receivable, current portion	148,885
Due from other governments	134,600
Investments	9,966,248
Prepaid expenses	121,783
Total current assets	24,808,346
Noncurrent assets:	
Note receivable, net of current portion	1,902,921
Property, land and equipment	77,509,606
Less: accumulated depreciation	(29,084,974)
Total noncurrent assets	50,327,553
Total assets	75,135,899
LIABILITIES	
Current liabilities:	
Accounts payable	90,955
Accrued wages and related items	29,329
Unearned revenue	3,000
Due to other funds	517,092
Total current liabilities	640,376
Total liabilities	640,376
NET POSITION	
Net investment in capital assets	50,327,553
Restricted for capital projects	12,649,063
Unrestricted	11,518,907
Total net position	\$ 74,495,523

## STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

## **PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OPERATING REVENUE	 Total
Service charges	\$ 7,912,375
Grant revenue	15,927
Other	112,329
Total operating revenue	 8,040,631
OPERATING EXPENSES	
Wages	562,520
Employee benefits	29,547
Insurance	77,170
Maintenance	129,381
Purchased services	1,041,292
Professional services	525,578
Utilities	301,666
Other departmental expense	1,021,623
Communications	5,052
Dues and memberships	312
Office and shop expense	65,678
Miscellaneous	394,560
Depreciation	 1,474,873
Total operating expenses	 5,629,252
Operating income (loss)	2,411,379
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)	
Interest revenue	 (446,819)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)	 (446,819)
Income (loss) before capital contributions	1,964,560
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS	 127,875
CHANGE IN NET POSITION	2,092,435
NET POSITION, beginning	 72,403,088
NET POSITION, end of year	\$ 74,495,523

## STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

## **PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
Cash received from customers	\$ 8,069,095
Payments for services and supplies	(3,575,632)
Payments of employee salaries	(554,335)
Payments of employee benefits	(29,547)
Interfund reimbursements	265,675
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities	4,175,256
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED	
FINANCING ACTIVITIES	
Acquisition and construction of capital assets	(216,594)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related	
financing activities	(216,594)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
Sale (purchase) of investments	(2,057,339)
Interest received	300,119
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities	(1,629,345)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH	2,329,317
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year	11,249,794
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year	\$ 13,579,111
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
Operating income (loss)	\$ 2,411,379
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash	
provided (used) by operating activities:	
Depreciation	1,474,873
(Increase) decrease in:	
Accounts receivable	160,203
Due from other governments	(5,592)
Prepaid expenses	1,649
Increase (decrease) in:	
Accounts payable	(14,967)
Accrued wages	8,185
Deferred revenue	(3,001)
Compensated absences	142,527
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities	\$ 4,175,256

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

## STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

## **INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	
Current assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ (2,713,836)
Accounts receivable	97,388
Due from other funds	850,642
Inventory	18,595
Prepaid expenses	 77
Total current assets	(1,747,134)
Noncurrent assets:	
Net pension asset	 3,239,335
Total assets	1,492,201
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred outflows on pensions	 2,149,161
LIABILITIES	
Current liabilities:	
Accounts payable	1,166,014
Accrued wages and related items	 57,282
Total current liabilities	1,223,296
Noncurrent liabilities:	
Compensated absences	602,754
Retiree termination benefits	96,378
Other postemployment benefits liabilities	 726,221
Total noncurrent liabilities	 1,425,353
Total liabilities	 2,648,649
<b>DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES</b>	
Deferred inflows on pensions	 649,569
NET POSITION	
Unrestricted	\$ 343,144

## STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

## **INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS**

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

#### **OPERATING REVENUE** \$ Charges for services 1,574,852 1,492 Other 1,576,344 Total operating revenue **OPERATING EXPENSES** Engineering & Utility Operations 356,624 Fleet operations & maintenance 142,326 1,077,393 Administrative Operations Total operating expenses 1,576,343 Operating income (loss) 1 NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) Investment income (393, 362)Investment fees (7, 136)Total nonoperating expenses (400, 498)CHANGE IN NET POSITION (400,497) NET POSITION, beginning 743,641 \$ 343,144 NET POSITION, end of year

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

# **INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS**

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash PLOWS PROMOPERATING ACTIVITIESCash received from internal charges\$ 1,534,202Cash received from other sources1,492Payments for employee salaries & benefits(3,301,440)Payments for services and supplies(1,20,445Net cash provided (used) by operating activities(645,701)CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES(645,701)FINANCING ACTIVITIES(211,167)Interfund transfers(211,167)Interfund transfers(211,167)Interst fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related(611,664)financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(2,713,836)RECONCILLATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BYOPERATING ACTIVITIES(40,650)Operating income (loss)sInverting income (loss)sPrepaid expenses10,130Invertory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:4,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,124,080Deferred inflows(443,30	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Cash received from other sources1,492Payments for employee salaries & benefits(3,301,440)Payments for services and supplies1,120,045Net cash provided (used) by operating activities(645,701)CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES(211,167)Interest income(393,361)Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related(611,664)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related(611,664)Interest fees(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BYOperating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:(40,650)Nerease decrease in:(40,650)Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:(1,127,729)Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,550Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)		¢	1 534 202
Payments for employee salaries & benefits(3,301,440)Payments for services and supplies1,120,045Net cash provided (used) by operating activities(645,701)CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES[1,167)FINANCING ACTIVITIES(211,167)Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related(611,664)financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BYOPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130 Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729 Accrued wages and related items 6,100 Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285 Net pension liability(1,145,080) Deferred inflowsDeferred inflows(443,306)	6	Ψ	
Payments for services and supplies       1.120.045         Net cash provided (used) by operating activities       (645,701)         CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES       [11.10,10]         FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (211,167)         Interfund transfers       (211,167)         Interest income       (393,361)         Interest fees       (7.136)         Net cash provided (used) by capital and related       (611,664)         MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH       (1,257,365)         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year       (1,456,471)         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year       S       (2,713,836)         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME       (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY       OPERATING ACTIVITIES         Operating income (loss)       5       1       1         Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:       (Increase)       (40,650)         Prepaid expenses       10,130       Inventory       (8,440)       0         Deferred outflows       (295,060)       1,127,729       Accounts payble       1,127,729         Accrued wages and related items       6,100       6,100       6,100       6,100         Compensated absences       34,590       0/ther postemployment benefits			
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities(645,701)CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interest income(211,167)Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year§ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by opera			
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES FINANCING ACTIVITIES Interfund transfers (211,167) Interest income (393,361) Interest income (393,361) Interest fees (7,136) Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (611,664) NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (1,257,365) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year (1,456,471) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year § (2,713,836) RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES Operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable (40,650) Prepaid expenses 10,130 Inventory (8,440) Deferred outflows (295,060) Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble 1,127,729 Accrued wages and related items 6,100 Compensated absences 34,590 Other postemployment benefits liabilities 108,285 Net pension liability (1,145,080) Deferred inflows (443,306)			
FINANCING ACTIVITIESInterfund transfers(211,167)Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Netnery(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	The cush provided (used) by operating acarmies		(010,701)
Interfund transfers(211,167)Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1.257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1.456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES		
Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1.257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1.456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items Compensated absences6,100 34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285 Net pension liability (1,145,080) Deferred inflows	FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
Interest income(393,361)Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: 	Interfund transfers		(211,167)
Interest fees(7,136)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities(611,664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1,257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net persion liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Interest income		
fnancing activities(611.664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1.257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1.456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BYOPERATING ACTIVITIESOperating income (loss)Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,60)Increase (decrease) in: Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Interest fees		
fnancing activities(611.664)NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH(1.257,365)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1.456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BYOPERATING ACTIVITIESOperating income (loss)Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,60)Increase (decrease) in: Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Net cash provided (used) by capital and related		
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)			(611,664)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year(1,456,471)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH		(1257365)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year\$ (2,713,836)RECONCILLATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES\$ 1Operating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable\$ (40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)			
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIESOperating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year		(1,456,471)
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIESOperating income (loss)\$ 1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accounts payble6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year	\$	(2,713,836)
OPERATING ACTIVITIESOperating income (loss)\$Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME		
Operating income (loss)\$1Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY		
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
provided (used) by operating activities:(Increase) decrease in:(Increase) decrease in:(40,650)Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:(295,060)Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Operating income (loss)	\$	1
provided (used) by operating activities:(Increase) decrease in:(Increase) decrease in:(40,650)Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:(295,060)Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash		
Accounts receivable(40,650)Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)			
Prepaid expenses10,130Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	(Increase) decrease in:		
Inventory(8,440)Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Accounts receivable		(40,650)
Deferred outflows(295,060)Increase (decrease) in:1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Prepaid expenses		10,130
Increase (decrease) in:1,127,729Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Inventory		(8,440)
Accounts payble1,127,729Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Deferred outflows		(295,060)
Accrued wages and related items6,100Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Increase (decrease) in:		
Compensated absences34,590Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Accounts payble		1,127,729
Other postemployment benefits liabilities108,285Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Accrued wages and related items		6,100
Net pension liability(1,145,080)Deferred inflows(443,306)	Compensated absences		34,590
Deferred inflows (443,306)	Other postemployment benefits liabilities		108,285
	Net pension liability		(1,145,080)
Net cash provided by operating activities\$ (645,701)	Deferred inflows		(443,306)
	Net cash provided by operating activities	\$	(645,701)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

# STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

## FIDUCIARY FUNDS

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	Se	eries 2005 Bonds	 ries 2006 Bonds	Re	4 Special funding Bonds	Total
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	2,280,246	\$ 659,506	\$	38,077	\$ 2,977,829
<b>LIABILITIES</b>						
Due to others	\$	2,280,246	\$ 659,506	\$	38,077	\$ 2,977,829

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

## A. ORGANIZATION

Northstar Community Services District (the "District") was founded on November 20, 1990, and is an unincorporated political subdivision of the State of California. The District's operations are governed by an elected board of directors consisting of five members. The District provides fire protection services, fuels management services, water, sewer and solid waste services, snow removal and roads maintenance services to the citizens residing within District boundaries. In addition, the District is responsible for maintaining a multi-use recreational trail network.

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The District's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

#### **Reporting Entity**

The Board of Directors is the level of government which has governance responsibilities over all activities related to operations of the District. The Board is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, since Board members have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The District's Board of Directors formed a non-profit public benefit corporation known as the Northstar Community Services District Financing Authority (Financing Authority). The District and the Financing Authority have a financial and operational relationship which meets the reporting entity definition criteria of Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of the Financing Authority as a blended component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of Financing Authority have been included in the financial statements of the District.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District and Financing Authority which satisfy Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100:

#### Manifestations of Oversight

The Financing Authority's Board of Directors is the District's Board of Directors.

The Financing Authority has no employees. The District's general manager functions as an agent of the Financing Authority. The individuals did not receive additional compensation for work performed in this capacity.

The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Financing Authority as it is anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of all facilities owned by the Financing Authority.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### Accounting for Fiscal Matters

All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Financing Authority must have the consent of the District.

Any deficits incurred by the Financing Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of the District. Any surpluses of the Financing Authority revert to the District at the end of the lease period.

It is anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Financing Authority.

#### Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation

The Financing Authority was created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the District.

The Financing Authority is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of California and recorded by the Secretary of State. The Financing Authority was formed to provide financing assistance to the District for construction and acquisition of a new administrative building. Upon completion, the District intends to occupy all Financing Authority facilities. When the Financing Authority's Lease Revenue Bonds have been paid, title to all Financing Authority property will pass to the District for no additional consideration.

The Financing Authority's financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the Building Fund. Lease Revenue Bonds issued by the Financing Authority are included in the long-term liabilities.

#### **B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION**

#### Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display financial information about the District. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.

The government-wide statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two presented as net position. Net position is reported as three categories as applicable: net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. Restricted net position is further classified as either net position restricted by enabling legislation or net position that is otherwise restricted.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### **B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)**

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is not allocated by function. Interest on long-term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately in the Statement of Activities.

#### Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate column.

## C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

#### Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements are met. Expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred.

#### **Governmental Fund Financial Statements**

Governmental fund financial statements (i.e. balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances) are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. "Available" means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, "available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year-end.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used, or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

#### **D. FUND ACCOUNTING**

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The District funds are as follows:

#### **Governmental Funds:**

*General Fund* is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all transactions except those required or permitted by law to be accounted for in another fund.

*Capital Projects Fund is* used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities funded by special taxes levied by the Community Facilities District (CFD) for the benefit of CFD properties.

Building Fund is used to account for the construction of the new administration building.

#### Proprietary – Enterprise Funds:

Northstar Water Fund is used to account for the delivery of Northstar water services.

Martis Valley Water Fund is used to account for the delivery of Martis Valley water services.

Sewer Fund is used to account for the delivery of sewer services.

Solid Waste Fund is used to account for the delivery of solid waste services.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### Internal Service Funds

The Northstar Community Services District employs the use of several Internal Service Funds. The District is the primary recipient of the goods and services provided by the Internal Service Funds and those funds recover their full cost of providing services, including the cost of capital assets (depreciation, related debt service, or estimated replacement cost) by charging the other District funds in which they support. The three Internal Service Funds utilized by the District are shown below:

**Engineering & Utility Operations**. This fund consists of the activities of the engineering and utility operations staff required in support of overall District operations.

**Fleet Operations & Maintenance**. This fund consists of the fiscal activities required to purchase, maintain, and repair the vehicle and small equipment fleet that belong to the District, with the exception of vehicles and equipment specifically dedicated to Fire, Snow (blowers, sweeper, and grader), and PRD/CSA (Kodiak).

Administrative Operations. This department includes the operational areas of General Management, Human Resources, Information Technology (IT)/Geographic Information System (GIS), Accounting functions, and the Board of Directors.

#### Fiduciary Funds:

*The Agency Funds are* used to account for assets held by the District as an agent for the bondholders. The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, but are presented in separate fiduciary fund financial statements.

#### E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of net position/balance sheet, the District considers all short-term highly liquid investments, including restricted assets, and amounts held with the fiscal agent to be cash and cash equivalents. Amounts held with the fiscal agent are available on demand to the District.

#### F. PREPAID EXPENSES

The District entered into a barter truncation with Northstar Community Housing Corporation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 in which water and sewer connection and user fees were exchanged for employee housing services. Employee housing services will end once the credit has been exhausted or in thirty years, whichever comes first. Any credit not used by the end of the 30 year period will be paid to the District.

## G. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of fuel kept on hand and is stated at average cost per gallon. This fuel is for equipment used by the District.

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### **H. INVESTMENTS**

The District records its investments at fair market value. Changes in fair market value are reported as revenue in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The effect of recording investments at fair market value is reflected as a net increase in the fair value of investments on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and on the Statement of Net Position. Fair market values of investments have been determined based on quoted market prices.

#### I. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. As of June 30, 2022, the total accounts receivable portfolio was considered collectible. Interest on investments is recorded in the year the interest is earned.

#### J. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of \$5,000 or more are reported at historical cost. Depreciation is recorded on all depreciable capital assets on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements	15 - 50	Years
Water and Sewer System	10 - 100	Years
Vehicles and Equipment	5 – 25	Years
Software	7	Years

#### **K. UNEARNED REVENUE**

Unearned revenue includes payments received for future use by fuels management and trails. The balance decreases as this amount is used.

#### L. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The District's receivables include amounts due from other governmental agencies and consist mostly of tax revenues and user fees. Management has determined that the District's receivables are fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been made.

#### M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

District employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on the length of their employment, which will be paid to them upon separation from the District. Compensated absences accumulate and are accrued when they are earned and reported as a liability in the government-wide financial statements.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### I. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

## J. FUND BALANCE

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, *"Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions"*, the District is required to report fund balances in the following categories: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and/or Unassigned.

*Nonspendable Fund Balance* reflects assets not in spendable form, either because they will never convert to cash (prepaid expense) or must remain intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements.

*Restricted Fund Balance* reflects amounts that can be spent only for the *specific purposes* stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

*Committed Fund Balance* reflects amounts that can be used only for the *specific purposes* determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority: the Board of Directors. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the Board of Directors.

Assigned Fund Balance reflects amounts intended to be used by the government for *specific purposes* but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Under the District's adopted policy, only the Board of Directors is authorized to assign amounts for specific purposes.

*Unassigned Fund Balance* represents the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes of which restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned, respectively.

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### K. USE OF ESTIMATES

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and, as such, include amounts based on managements' informed estimates and judgments, with consideration given to materiality. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

## L. PROPERTY TAX

The District receives property taxes to support its operations. Secured property taxes are levied as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two installments, on December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Placer bills and collects the taxes for the District. Tax revenues are accrued monthly based on an annual budgeted expectation of property tax revenue.

#### 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

## A. CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

The District's cash balances at June 30, 2022 are:

	Governmental Activities		iness-Type Activities	Fiduciary Activities	Total	
Deposits:						
US Bank	\$	3,988,917	\$ 6,665,073	\$ -	\$	10,653,990
Market		197,809	115,911	-		313,720
Cash on Hand:						
Petty Cash		400	-	-		400
<b>Cash with Fiscal Agent:</b>						
Wells Fargo Mello Roos		1,533,279	-	2,977,829		4,511,108
Pooled Funds:						
Local Agency Investment		-	 6,798,127	 -		6,798,127
Total Cash and Equivalents	\$	5,720,405	\$ 13,579,111	\$ 2,977,829	\$	22,277,345

#### Pooled Funds:

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the state of California and the Pooled Money Investment Board. The State Treasurer's Office pools these funds with those of other governmental agencies in the state and invests the cash. The fair value of the District's investment in this pool, which approximates cost, is reported in the accompanying financial statements based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account with twenty-four hours' notice. The Pooled Money Investment Board has established policies, goals, and objectives to make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity, and yield are not jeopardized.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by Federal Agencies, government-sponsored enterprises and corporations. The monies held in the LAIF are not subject to categorization by risk category. It is also not rated as to credit risk by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

LAIF is administered by the State Treasurer and audited annually by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the State Controller's Office. Copies of this audit may be obtained from the State Treasurer's Office: 915 Capitol Mall, Sacramento, California 95814.

#### Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits held in banks are insured up to \$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. Should deposits exceed the insured limits, the balance is covered by collateral held by the bank in accordance with California law requiring the depository bank to hold collateral equal to 110% of the excess government funds on deposit. This collateral must be in the form of government-backed securities. All cash held by financial institutions at June 30, 2022 was fully insured or collateralized.

#### Cash with Fiscal Agent

At June 30, 2022, funds totaling \$2,977,829 were held at Wells Fargo Bank in various accounts related to the Special Tax Bonds issued in 2005 and 2006, the Refunding Bonds issued in 2014 for the construction of facilities and payment of the Special Tax Bonds and the Lease Revenue Bonds issued in 2015 for the purpose of funding the construction of a new administration building.

#### Negative Cash Balance

At June 30, 2022, the Internal Service Fund had a reported negative cash balance of \$2,713,836. This is not due to an overdraft of a bank account; however, is the result of the allocation between funds that all share one US Bank account, which is not overdrawn.

# NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### **B. INVESTMENTS**

#### Authorized Deposits/Investments

Under provisions of the District's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code, The District may invest in the following types of investments:

	Investment	Maximum % of	Limit Per	Maximum
Authorized Investment Type	Rating (S&P)	Portfolio	Issuer	Maturity
US Treasury bills, notes and bonds	AAA	70	None	5 Years
Government Agencies Securities	AAA	70	50%	5 Years
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)	N/A	50	None	3 Years
Bonds, notes or other indebtedness of				
the State of California	AA	10	None	5 Years
Bankers Acceptances	N/A	20	10%	180 days
Commercial Paper	A1	15	10%	270 days
	Top 25% of			
Time Deposits	peer group	20	\$500,000	2 Years
Repurchase Agreements	N/A	20	10%	N/A
Corporate Obligations	А	30	10%	5 Years
Mutual Funds	AAA	15	10%	3 Years
Other Government Sponsored Pools	AAAf	20	10%	3 Years

#### Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The mutual funds are considered short term.

As of June 30, 2022, The District had the following investments:

			Investment Maturities							
Investment Type	Fair	Value		<1yr		1-3 yrs		>3yrs		
Corporate Notes	\$	11,498,185	\$	1,948,015	\$	9,444,566	\$	105,604		
US Treasury		297,576		249,271		48,305		-		
Totals		11,795,761		2,197,286		9,492,871		105,604		

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### Credit Risk

The District's investment philosophy sets the tone for its policies, practices, procedures and objectives that control the investment function. The investment of funds will be guided by the primary goals of safety, liquidity, diversification, and reasonable market rate of return. The investment function will have additional goals of: assuring ongoing compliance with Federal, State, and local laws governing the investment of funds kept by the District, maintaining reserves for long term projects and contingencies, and establishing quality standards and limits to the type of investments made and with which institutions investments are placed. Goals will be carried out in the context of the "Prudent Investment Rule" which states that "investments shall be made with judgment and care under circumstances then prevailing which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

Credit Rating	Corporate		porate US		
(S&P)	 Notes		Г	Treasury	 Totals
NR	\$ 172,362		\$	-	\$ 172,362
AAA	44,844			297,576	\$ 342,420
AA	59,771			-	\$ 59,771
A+	90,000			-	\$ 90,000
А	455,124			-	\$ 455,124
A-	837,283			-	\$ 837,283
BBB+	2,951,502			-	\$ 2,951,502
BBB	4,484,026			-	\$ 4,484,026
BBB-	 2,403,273			-	\$ 2,403,273
Totals	\$ 11,498,185		\$	297,576	\$ 11,795,761

#### Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places limits on the amount it may invest in anyone issuer. At June 30, 2022, the District had no concentration of credit risk.

There were no investments in securities of any one issuer consisting of 5% or more of total investments.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### Investment Fund Valuation

Investments, including derivative instruments that are not hedging derivatives, are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments' fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2022:

Description	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		Total	
US Agency, Treasury & Municipal Notes (USATM)	:							
US Treasury Notes:	\$	297,576	\$	-	\$	-	\$	297,576
Corporate Notes		-		11,498,185		-		11,498,185
Total	\$	297,576	\$	11,498,185	\$	-	\$	11,795,761

## 3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

#### **Governmental Activities:**

	Balance			Balance
	June 30, 2021	Additions	Deletions	June 30, 2022
Not subject to depreciation				
Land	\$ 7,598,216	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 7,598,216
Construction In Progress				
General Fund	52,522	245,176	-	297,698
Total Not subject to Depreciation	7,650,738	245,176	-	7,895,914
Subject to Depreciation				
Buildings and Improvements	21,365,161	-	-	21,365,161
Equipment	1,563,507	19,916	-	1,583,423
Vehicles and Equipment	4,260,640	52,292	-	4,312,932
Software	78,587			78,587
Total depreciable	27,267,895	72,208	-	27,340,103
Less accumulated depreciation	(8,462,946)	(645,001)	-	(9,107,947)
Total capital assets, net	\$ 26,455,687	\$ (327,617)	\$ -	\$ 26,128,070

# NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# JUNE 30, 2022

#### **Business-Type Activities:**

	Balance	A 114:	Dalations	Balance
	June 30, 2021	Additions	Deletions	June 30, 2022
Not subject to depreciation				
Land	\$ 748,907	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 748,907
Construction In Progress	50,565		50,565	
Total Not subject to Depreciation	799,472	-	50,565	748,907
Subject to Depreciation				
Buildings and Improvements	22,568,616	-	-	22,568,616
Equipment	1,554,671	33,747	-	1,588,418
Vehicles and Equipment	874,858	-	-	874,858
Software	258,370	-	-	258,370
Water /Sewer System	51,237,025	233,413		51,470,438
Total depreciable	76,493,540	267,160	-	76,760,700
Less accumulated depreciation	(27,610,102)	(1,474,873)	-	(29,084,975)
Total capital assets, net	\$ 49,682,910	\$ (1,207,713)	\$ 50,565	\$ 48,424,632

## 4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

As of June 30, 2022, the interfund receivable and payable balances were as follows:

	Interfund		Iı	nterfund	
	Re	ceivables	P	ayables	
General Fund*	\$	-	\$	-	
Northstar Water Fund		-	307,372		
Martis Valley Water Fund	-			182,434	
Sewer Fund		-		12,366	
Solid Waste Fund		-		14,920	
Internal Service Fund*		517,092		-	
Total	\$ 517,092		\$	517,092	

\*Due to/from these funds of \$333,550 have been eliminated as they are combined on the Gov't Wide Financial Statements

## Interfund Transfers

There were no interfund transfers between funds.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### 5. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

## A. PLAN DESCRIPTION

Northstar Community Services District participates in the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous				
Prior to	On or after			
January 1, 2013	January 1, 2013			
2.7% @ 55	2.0% @ 62			
5 years service	5 years service			
monthly for life	monthly for life			
55	62			
2.70%	2.00%			
8.000%	6.250%			
15.300%	7.590%			
	Prior to January 1, 2013 2.7% @ 55 5 years service monthly for life 55 2.70% 8.000%			

	Safe ty		
	Prior to	On or after	
Hire date	January 1, 2013	January 1, 2013	
Benefit formula	3.0% @ 50	2.7% @ 57	
Benefit vesting schedule	5 years service	5 years service	
Benefit payments	monthly for life	monthly for life	
Retirement age	50	57	
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation	3.0%	3.0%	
Required employee contribution rates	9.000%	12.000%	
Required employer contribution rates	23.710%	13.130%	

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Northstar Community Services District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plan were:

	Misce	llaneous	 Safety
Contributions -employer	\$	560,339	\$ 663,578

# Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2022, Northstar Community Services District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plans' of:

	<b>Proportionate Share</b>			
of	of Net Pension Liability			
Miscellaneous	\$	(538,244)		
Safety		(763,656)		
Total Net Pension Liability (Asset)	\$	(1,301,900)		
Funds Held in CEPPT Trust		4,133,106		
Net Pension Asset	\$	(5,435,006)		

Northstar Community Services District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 using standard update procedures. Northstar Community Services District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

	Miscellaneous	Safety
Proportion - June 30, 2021	0.026720%	0.028320%
Proportion - June 30, 2022	-0.000284%	-0.021760%
Change - Increase (Decrease)	-0.02700%	-0.05008%

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

#### Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of \$3,741,131 for Miscellaneous and Safety. At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Total			
	Defer	red Outflows	Deferred Inflows of Resources	
	of	Resources		
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement				
date	\$	1,223,917	\$	-
Difference between projected and actual				
experience		(190,828)		-
Difference in actual vs. projected contributions		1,781,761		355,740
Change in employer's proportion		912,617		1,438,402
Changes in assumptions		-		-
Net differences between projected and actual				
earnings on plan investments		924,381		-
Total	\$	4,651,848	\$	1,794,142

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Mis	cellaneous		Safety		Total
\$	322,301	\$	245,486	\$	567,787
	269,856		202,954		472,810
	184,004		154,265		338,269
	129,845		125,078		254,923
	-		-		-
	-		-		-
\$	906,006	\$	727,783	\$	1,633,789
		269,856 184,004 129,845 - -	\$ 322,301 \$ 269,856 184,004 129,845 - -	\$ 322,301       \$ 245,486         269,856       202,954         184,004       154,265         129,845       125,078	\$ 322,301       \$ 245,486       \$         269,856       202,954       184,004       154,265         129,845       125,078

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions for both plans:

	Miscellaneous	Safety
Valuation Date	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2020
Measurement Date	June 30, 2021	June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method	Entry-Age Normal Cost	Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions		
Discount Rate	7.15%	7.15%
Inflation	2.75%	2.75%
Payroll Growth Rate	3.00%	3.00%
Projected Salary Increase	Varies by Entry Age and Service	Varies by Entry Age and Servic
Investment Rate of Return (1)	7.50%	7.50%
Mortality	Based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007	Based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

**Discount Rate** – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF C), the amortization and smoothing periods recently adopted by the Board were used. For the Plan, the crossover test was performed for a miscellaneous agent rate plan and a safety agent rate plan selected as being more at risk of failing the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate of return on pension investments. Based on the testing of the rate plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to dete1mine the total pension liability for PERF C. The crossover test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be obtained on CalPERS' website under the GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (Public Employees' Retirement Fund) cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The long-term expected real rates of return by asset class can be found in CalPERS 'Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

	CalPERS			
Asset Class	New Strategic Allocation	Real Return Years 1-10 (a)	Real Return Years 11+ (b)	
Global Equity	47.0%	4.90%	5.38%	
Fixed Income	19.0%	0.80%	2.27%	
Inflation Assets	6.0%	0.60%	1.39%	
Private Equity	12.0%	6.60%	6.63%	
Real Estate	11.0%	2.80%	5.21%	
Infrastructure and Forestland	3.0%	3.90%	5.36%	
Liquidity	2.0%	-0.40%	-0.90%	
	100.0%			

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period

(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

	Discount Rate - 1%		ate - 1% Current Discount		Discount Rate + 1%	
	(6.15%)		Ra	te (7.15%)		(8.15%)
Safety	\$	1,976,297	\$	(763,656)	\$	(3,014,189)
Miscellaneous		1,194,889		(538,244)		(1,971,000)
Total Pension Liability (Asset)	\$	3,171,186	\$	(1,301,900)	\$	(4,985,189)

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety financial reports.

#### Payable to the Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2022, the District had no outstanding required contributions to the pension plans.

#### 7. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

#### Lease Revenue Bonds

In 2015, the District issued Lease Revenue Bonds in the amount of \$4,655,000 for the purpose of funding the construction of a new administration building. The current interest and yield vary, ranging from 2.0% to 4.0%. The bonds are scheduled to mature through August 2045.

The District's outstanding lease revenue bonded debt as of June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Amount of			Redeemed	
Original	Outstanding		Current	Outstanding
Issue	July 1, 2021	Issued	Year	June 30, 2022
\$ 4,655,000	\$ 4,075,000	\$ -	\$ 105,000	\$ 3,970,000

The annual requirements to amortize the current interest bonds payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Year			
Ended			
June 30	Principal	Interest	Total
2023	\$ 110,000	\$ 154,100	\$ 264,100
2024	115,000	149,700	264,700
2025	120,000	145,100	265,100
2026	125,000	140,300	265,300
2027	130,000	135,300	265,300
2028-2032	725,000	608,875	1,333,875
2033-2037	860,000	462,800	1,322,800
2038-2042	1,050,000	276,200	1,326,200
2043-2046	735,000	59,600	794,600
	\$ 3,970,000	\$ 2,131,975	\$ 6,101,975

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### Note Receivable/Payable

In January 2020, the Board of Directors approved a loan from the Enterprise Fund to the General Fund in the amount of \$2,321,577. The loan carries an annual interest rate of .77% and is to be paid off in 15 years with the final payment being due in 2035.

The annual requirements of the General Fund to pay the Enterprise Fund as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Year						
Ended						
June 30	P	rincipal	I	nterest		Total
2023	\$	148,885	\$	15,560	\$	164,445
2024		150,028		14,417		164,445
2025		151,179		13,266		164,445
2026		152,340		12,105		164,445
2027		153,509		10,936		164,445
2028-2032		785,402		36,824		822,226
2033-2035		510,463		7,478		517,941
	\$ 2	2,051,806	\$	110,586	\$ 2	2,162,392

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2022 is shown below:

#### **Governmental Activities**

	Balance July 1, 2021	Add	itions	De	eductions	Balance ne 30, 2022	Due Within ne Year
Net OPEB Liability	\$ 2,054,901	\$ 3	357,973	\$	-	\$ 2,412,874	\$ -
Retiree Termination Benefits	110,104		-		13,726	96,378	15,000
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)	(1,715,807)		-		3,719,199	(5,435,006)	-
Compensated Absences	1,436,344		57,783		-	1,494,127	1,494,127
Note Payable to Sewer Fund	2,174,952		-		123,146	2,051,806	148,885
Lease Revenue Bonds	4,075,000				105,000	 3,970,000	 110,000
	\$ 8,135,494	<b>\$</b> 4	415,756	\$	3,961,071	\$ 4,590,179	\$ 1,768,012

#### 8. DEBT WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITMENT

During 2005 and 2006, bonded debt was issued by a special assessment district known as Community Facilities District #1 (CFD) to finance infrastructure improvements and facilities within the District's boundaries. The District has no legal responsibility with respect to the payment of the debt and the proceeds will be used for various projects in the County of Placer and Northstar Community Services District. Therefore, the District has not recorded it as a liability. The debt is to be repaid from a special tax levied on properties within the CFD. The District is responsible for a portion of the construction and improvements financed by the special assessment district. Therefore, the related capital projects fund is reflected in the District's financial statements. The District also acts as the CFD's agent with respect to the

-

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

receipts, disbursements and balances. These amounts are reported as agency fund transactions. The following includes information related to the outstanding debt as of June 30, 2021.

In December 2005, the Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 issued Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005 in the amount of \$56,125,000, with interest rates ranging from 3.80% to 5.55%.

In December 2006, the Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 issued Special Tax Bonds, Series 2006 in the amount of \$58,590,000, with interest rates ranging from 3.90% to 5.00%.

In July 2014, the District issued Special Tax Refunding bonds to refund a portion of CFD No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2005 and Series 2006, fund a deposit to the parity reserve fund for the Bonds and pay the costs of issuance. Interest on the bonds is payable every September 1 and March 1 beginning on September 1, 2014. Principal on the bonds will be payable on September 1 beginning on September 1, 2015. The bonds will currently refund \$21,140,000 of the 2005 and 2006 Special Tax Bonds. The bonds created a deferred loss on refunding in the amount of \$1,820,000. The bonds carry interest rates of 4.00% and 5.00% and will fully mature on September 1, 2026.

			R	ledeemed	
Outstanding				Current	Outstanding
July 1, 2021	I	ssued		Year	June 30, 2022
\$ 48,305,000	\$	-	\$	1,400,000	\$ 46,905,000
42,415,000		-		-	42,415,000
9,560,000		-		1,220,000	8,340,000
\$ 100,280,000	\$	-	\$	2,620,000	\$ 97,660,000

At June 30, 2022, the outstanding bonds consisted of the following:

The annual requirements to pay the bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Year			
Ended			
June 30	Principal	Interest	Total
2023	\$ 2,915,000	\$ 3,005,423	\$ 5,920,423
2024	3,225,000	2,852,675	6,077,675
2025	3,560,000	2,683,663	6,243,663
2026	3,915,000	2,497,113	6,412,113
2027	4,290,000	2,291,958	6,581,958
2028-2032	27,950,000	18,244,343	46,194,343
2032-2037	41,500,000	9,501,443	51,001,443
2038-2039	10,305,000	515,250	10,820,250
	\$ 97,660,000	\$ 41,591,865	\$ 139,251,865

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

## 9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

#### A. PLAN DESCRIPTION

Northstar Community Services District participates in the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit healthcare plan as permitted under the Public Employees Medical and Hospital and Care Act (PEMHCA). The District is required to contribute minimum employer contributions incurred by the CalPERS medical program for the retiree's lifetime or until coverage is discontinued. In fiscal year 2021/22, minimum employer contributions were \$143 through December 31, 2021 and \$149 through June 30, 2022 per month per retiree.

## **B. FUNDING POLICY**

The District's Board of Directors is only funding the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Board will review the funding requirements and policy annually.

*Employees covered by benefit terms*. At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments	9
Inactive employees entitles to but not yet receiving benefit payments	8
Active employees	40
	57

## **Net OPEB Liability**

The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary Increases	3.00%
Investment rate of return	1.92%
Healthcare cost trend rates	7.0% in 2020 grading down to 5.0% by 2024
Inflation	2.50%
Retirement Age	From 50 to 75
Mortality	CalPERS 2017 Experience

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

*Discount rate*. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 1.92 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the Districts's contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

#### **Changes in the Net OPEB Liability**

	Increase (Decrease)				
	Total OPEB Liability (a)		Plan Fiduciary Net Position (b)		et OPEB Liability (a) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2021	\$	2,054,901	\$	-	\$ 2,054,901
Changes for the year:					
Service cost		133,310		-	133,310
Interest		53,065		-	53,065
Differences between expected					
and actual experience		-		-	-
Contributions - employer		-		44,616	(44,616)
Net investment income		-		-	-
Benefit payments		(44,616)		(44,616)	-
Assumption changes		216,214		-	 216,214
Net changes		357,973		-	 357,973
Balances at June 30, 2022	\$	2,412,874	\$	-	\$ 2,412,874

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (0.92%) or 1-percentage-point higher (2.92%) than the current discount rate:

	 • Decrease (0.92%)	count Rate (1.92%)	1% Increase (2.92%)	
Net OPEB liability (asset)	\$ 2,909,759	\$ 2,412,874	\$	2,027,392

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

	Healthcare Cost					
			Tr	end Rates		
	1% Decrease		(Current Rate)		1% Increase	
Net OPEB liability (asset)	\$	1,978,166	\$	2,412,874	\$	2,993,190

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

# **OPEB** Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized OPEB expense of \$141,835. At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of			eferred flows of
	Resources		Resources	
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	14,780	\$	472,703
Changes of assumptions		409,763		116,080
Deferred contributions		46,014		-
Total	\$	470,557	\$	588,783

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30	Total Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources				
2023	\$	(44,540)			
2024		(44,540)			
2025		(44,540)			
2026		(42,798)			
2027		(41,380)			
Thereafter		53,558			
Total	\$	(164,240)			

#### NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### **11. FUND BALANCES**

The District reports fund balances in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54. All fund balance categories are reported in the aggregate on the face of the balance sheet. All components of those fund balances and specific purposes are identified as follows:

		Capital		
	General	Projects	Building	
	Fund	Fund	Fund	Totals
Committed:				
Capital projects	\$ -	\$ 1,533,239	\$ 40	\$ 1,533,279
Fire	914,443	-	-	914,443
Snow	403,996	-	-	403,996
Roads	2,787,857			2,787,857
Total committed	4,106,296	1,533,239	40	5,639,575
Unassigned	5,301,264	-	-	5,301,264
Total Fund Balances	\$ 9,407,560	\$ 1,533,239	\$ 40	\$ 10,940,839

#### **12. RISK MANAGEMENT**

The District is a member of two jointly governed organizations, which provide coverage for various potential losses. For workers' compensation losses, property, general and auto liability and auto physical damage the District is a member of Special Districts Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). For property, general and auto liability and auto physical damage, the District's fire department is a member of Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority (FAIRA).

SDRMA and FAIRA are governed by Boards consisting of representatives from member agencies. The Board controls the operations, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member agencies beyond their representation on the Board. Each member agency pays a contribution commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in the joint powers authority. Full financial statements are available seperately from the respective agencies. Condensed information for SDRMA and FAIRA are as follows:

	SDRMA	FAIRA
	June 30, 2022	6/30/2021*
Total Assets	\$ 140,005,598	\$ 31,006,209
Deferred Outflows of Resources	\$ 750,427	\$ -
Total Liabilities	\$ 72,967,545	\$ 681,333
Deferred Inflows of Resources	\$ 445,351	\$ -
Net Position	\$ 67,343,129	\$ 2,351,678
Total Revenues	\$ 89,339,071	\$ 4,266,613
Total Expenses	\$ 88,339,229	\$ 4,495,678
Change in Net Position	\$ 999,842	\$ (229,065)

\*Latest audited financials available

## NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## JUNE 30, 2022

## **14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS**

Management has reviewed its financial statements and evaluated subsequent events for the period of time from its year ended June 30, 2022 through April 5, 2023, the date the financial statements were issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events other than the issuance of refunding bonds described below that would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements.

# REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

				Variance with Final Budget				
	Budgeted .	Amounts	Actual	Favorable				
	Original	Final	Amounts	(Unfavorable)				
REVENUE				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Taxes and assessments	\$ 6,233,200	\$ 6,233,200	\$ 6,235,394	\$ 2,194				
Fees and other non-tax revenue	582,169	582,169	795,545	213,376				
Interest	145,150	145,150	(46,100)	(191,250)				
Fire mitigation fees	6,000	6,000	6,357	357				
Reimbursable/Grant revenues	4,712,191	5,212,191	3,057,726	(2,154,465)				
Other	268,260	268,260	262,555	(5,705)				
Total revenue	11,946,970	12,446,970	10,311,477	(2,135,493)				
EXPENDITURES								
General government	186,553	186,553	102,175	84,378				
Public safety	6,323,306	6,875,438	6,443,289	432,149				
Streets	591,751	591,751	570,074	21,677				
Trails	4,093,624	4,093,624	2,060,984	2,032,640				
Total expenditures	11,195,234	11,747,366	9,176,522	2,570,844				
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES	751,736	699,604	1,134,955	435,351				
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year	8,272,605	8,272,605	8,272,605					
FUND BALANCE, end of year	\$ 9,024,341	\$ 8,972,209	\$ 9,407,560	\$ 435,351				

## SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	2018		2019			2020	2021		 2022
Total OPEB liability									
Service cost	\$	217,917	\$	135,794	\$	107,058	\$	126,041	\$ 133,310
Interest		84,735		75,068		62,830		64,400	53,065
Changes of benefit terms		-		-		-		-	-
Differences between expected and actual experience		-		(526,609)		-		(177,392)	-
Changes of assumptions		(327,439)		(5,202)		154,485		122,780	216,214
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions		(24,654)		(28,392)		(18,224)		(24,767)	 (44,616)
Net change in total OPEB liability		(49,441)		(349,341)		306,149		111,062	357,973
Total OPEB liability - beginning	2	2,696,296		1,987,031		1,637,690		1,943,839	 2,054,901
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)	\$ 2	2,646,855	\$	1,637,690	\$	1,943,839	\$	2,054,901	\$ 2,412,874
Plan fiduciary net position									
Contributions - employer	\$	24,654	\$	28,392	\$	18,224	\$	24,767	\$ 44,616
Net investment income		-		-		-		-	-
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions		(24,654)		(28,392)		(18,224)		(24,767)	(44,616)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position		-		-		-		-	-
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning		-		-		-		-	 -
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ _
District's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b)	\$ 2	2,646,855	\$	1,637,690	\$	1,943,839	\$	2,054,901	\$ 2,412,874
Covered-employee payroll	\$ 4	4,009,729	\$	4,368,968	\$	4,674,484	\$	4,310,987	\$ 4,588,985
District's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payrol		66.0%		37.5%		41.6%		47.7%	52.6%

#### SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Miscellaneous	Ju	ne 30, 2014	Ju	ne 30, 2015	Ju	me 30, 2016	Ju	me 30, 2017	Ju	ne 30, 2018	Ju	ne 30, 2019	Ju	ne 30, 2020	Ju	ne 30, 2021 <sup>(1)</sup>
Proportion of the net pension liability		0.064843%		0.068837%		0.051880%		0.064690%		0.057590%		0.057866%		0.028320%		-0.021760%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability	\$	1,602,716	\$	1,888,527	\$	2,247,126	\$	2,270,104	\$	2,166,197	\$	2,317,250	\$	1,127,248	\$	(538,244)
Covered-employee payroll (2)	\$	1,362,083	\$	1,429,177	\$	1,963,610	\$	1,501,123	\$	2,265,137	\$	2,046,319	\$	2,269,795	\$	2,467,099
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as																
percentage of covered-employee payroll		117.67%		132.14%		114.44%		151.23%		95.63%		113.24%		49.66%		-21.82%
Plans fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total																
pension liability		83.03%		79.89%		79.89%		75.39%		77.69%		77.73%		77.70%		90.49%
Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions (3)	\$	420,688	\$	443,802	\$	324,538	\$	324,538	\$	487,911	\$	543,987	\$	597,486	\$	560,339
Safety	Ju	ne 30, 2014	Ju	ne 30, 2015	Ju	me 30, 2016	Ju	me 30, 2017_	Ju	ne 30, 2018	Ju	ne 30, 2019	Ju	ne 30, 2020	Ju	ne <b>30, 2020</b> <sup>(1)</sup>
Proportion of the net pension liability		0.050339%		0.052768%		0.062570%		0.054110%		0.054890%		0.060606%		0.026720%		-0.000284%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability	\$	1,889,349	\$	2,174,274	\$	2,802,632	\$	3,279,883	\$	3,319,969	\$	3,783,349	\$	1,886,605	\$	(763,656)
Covered-employee payroll (2)	\$	1,579,744	\$	1,633,321	\$	1,666,981	\$	1,710,712	\$	2,403,297	\$	2,293,671	\$	2,642,402	\$	2,924,636
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as																
percentage of covered-employee payroll		119.60%		133.12%		168.13%		191.73%		138.14%		164.95%		71.40%		-26.11%

73.39%

577,330

\$

73.37%

584,483

\$

73.11%

640,774

\$

86.61%

663,578

 pension liability
 83.03%
 77.28%
 77.28%
 71.74%

 Proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions (3)
 \$ 596,832 \$ 624,730 \$ 403,835 \$ 403,835 \$
 403,835 \$

<sup>(1)</sup> Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

<sup>(2)</sup> Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.

(3) The plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the employer during the measurement period. The plan's proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on the plan's proportion of fiduciary net position shown on line 5 of the table above as well as any additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made by the employer during the measurement period.

Plans fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

## SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Miscellaneous	Fiscal Year <sup>(1)</sup>										
	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	2018-2019	2019-2020	2020-2021	2021-2022			
Actuarially Determined Contribution <sup>(2)</sup>	\$ 289,450	\$ 289,450	\$ 539,707	\$ 261,047	\$ 291,561	\$ 352,887	\$ 490,242	\$ 537,465			
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions	(420,688)	(443,802)	(324,538)	(324,538)	(487,911)	(543,987)	(597,486)	(560,339)			
Contribution deficiencey (excess)	\$ (131,238)	\$ (154,352)	\$ 215,169	\$ (63,491)	\$ (196,350)	\$ (191,100)	\$ (107,244)	\$ (22,874)			
Covered-employee payroll (3,4)	\$ 1,362,083	\$ 1,429,177	\$ 1,509,457	\$ 1,501,123	\$ 2,265,137	\$ 2,046,319	\$ 2,269,795	\$ 2,467,099			
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll (3)	21.25%	20.25%	35.76%	17.39%	12.87%	17.24%	21.60%	21.79%			

Safety	Fiscal Year <sup>(1)</sup>										
	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	2017-18	2018-2019	2019-2020	2020-2021	2021-2022			
Actuarially Determined Contribution (2)	\$ 424,982	\$ 424,982	\$ 598,928	\$ 334,414	\$ 463,101	\$ 573,567	\$ 871,604	\$ 1,128,270			
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions	(596,832)	(624,730)	(403,835)	(403,835)	(577,330)	(584,483)	(640,774)	(663,578)			
Contribution deficiencey (excess)	\$ (171,850)	\$ (199,748)	\$ 195,093	\$ (69,421)	\$ (114,229)	\$ (10,916)	\$ 230,830	\$ 464,692			
Covered-employee payroll (3,4)	\$ 1,579,744	\$ 1,633,321	\$ 1,666,981	\$ 1,710,712	\$ 2,403,297	\$ 2,293,671	\$ 2,642,402	\$ 2,924,636			
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll (3)	26.90%	26.02%	35.93%	19.55%	19.27%	25.01%	32.99%	38.58%			

<sup>(1)</sup> Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

(2) Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions (which is the actuarially determined contribution). However, some employers may choose to make additional contributions towards their side fund or their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plans exceed the actuarially determined contributions. CalPERS has determined that employer obligations referred to as "side funds" do not conform to the circumstances described in paragraph 120 of GASB 68, therefore are not considered separately financed specific liabilities.

<sup>(3)</sup> Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.

<sup>(4)</sup> Payroll from prior year was assumed to increase by the 3.00 percent payroll growth

## NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

## FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

#### PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

#### A - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

The District employs budget control by account codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Directors to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by object level, which is a category of account codes such as salaries and benefits or charges for services. The originally adopted and final revised budget for the General Fund is presented as Required Supplementary Information. The budgeting is done on the cash basis which is another comprehensive basis of accounting.

#### B -Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. However, since this is the fifth year of implementation, only five years are currently available.

Changes in assumptions: Discount rate decreased from 2.45% to 1.92%

#### C - Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

There were no changes in assumptions.

Fiscal year 2022 was the 8th year of implementation, therefore only eight years are shown.

#### D - Schedule of Pension Contributions

If an employer's contributions to the plan are actuarially determined or based on statutory or contractual requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension plan (or, if applicable, its statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's actual contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (or statutorily or contractually required), and a ratio of the actual contributions divided by covered-employee payroll.

# SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

# COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	Northstar Wate r	Martis Valley Water	Sewer	Solid Waste	Total
Current assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 4,802,853	\$ 3,143,568	\$ 5,569,515	\$ 63,175	\$ 13,579,111
Accounts receivable	344,263	366,899	144,584	1,973	857,719
Note receivable, current portion	-	-	148,885	-	148,885
Due from other governments	-	-	104,280	30,320	134,600
Investments	3,477,486	3,949,554	2,539,208	-	9,966,248
Prepaid expenses	58,847		62,936		121,783
Total current assets	8,683,449	7,460,021	8,569,408	95,468	24,808,346
Noncurrent assets:					
Note receivable, net of current portion	-	-	1,902,921	-	1,902,921
Property, land and equipment	31,589,998	33,868,894	11,411,263	639,451	77,509,606
Less: accumulated depreciation	(12,718,855)	(8,519,847)	(7,745,944)	(100,328)	(29,084,974)
Total noncurrent assets	18,871,143	25,349,047	5,568,240	539,123	50,327,553
Total assets	27,554,592	32,809,068	14,137,648	634,591	75,135,899
LIABILITIES					
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	33,485	55,457	1,924	89	90,955
Accrued wages and related items	14,344	8,527	5,739	719	29,329
Unearned revenue	-	3,000	-	-	3,000
Due to other funds	307,372	182,434	12,366	14,920	517,092
Total current liabilities	355,201	249,418	20,029	15,728	640,376
Total liabilities	355,201	249,418	20,029	15,728	640,376
NET POSITION					
Net investment in capital assets	18,871,143	25,349,047	5,568,240	539,123	50,327,553
Restricted for capital projects	3,777,338	4,854,734	3,980,792	36,199	12,649,063
Unrestricted	4,550,910	2,355,869	4,568,587	43,541	11,518,907
Total net position	\$ 27,199,391	\$ 32,559,650	\$ 14,117,619	\$ 618,863	\$ 74,495,523

### COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUE		orthstar Water	Μ	artis Valley Water	 Sewer	 Solid Waste	 Total
Service charges	\$	2,472,068	\$	1,779,250	\$ 3,031,990	\$ 629,067	\$ 7,912,375
Other		2,472		34,011	 75,846	 -	 112,329
Total operating revenue		2,474,540		1,829,188	 3,107,836	 629,067	 8,040,631
OPERATING EXPENSES							
Wages		265,252		185,041	90,281	21,946	562,520
Employee benefits		3,991		3,111	22,200	245	29,547
Insurance		40,140		29,410	7,620	-	77,170
Maintenance		42,257		81,243	5,816	65	129,381
Purchased services		-		-	1,041,292	-	1,041,292
Professional services		82,781		32,787	1,134	408,876	525,578
Utilities		132,235		161,693	7,168	570	301,666
Other departmental expense		299,443		261,311	448,502	12,367	1,021,623
Communications		899		2,904	793	456	5,052
Dues and memberships		60		60	192	-	312
Office and shop expense		46,325		16,388	1,281	1,684	65,678
Rent		-		-	-	-	-
Miscellaneous		221,434		140,445	17,723	14,958	394,560
Depreciation		643,392		586,147	232,040	13,294	1,474,873
Total operating expenses		1,778,209		1,500,540	 1,876,042	 474,461	 5,629,252
Operating income (loss)		696,331		328,648	1,231,794	154,606	2,411,379
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)							
Interest revenue		(154,451)		(175,890)	 (116,478)	 -	 (446,819)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)		(154,451)		(175,890)	 (116,478)	 -	 (446,819)
Income (loss) before capital contributions		541,880		152,758	1,115,316	154,606	1,964,560
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS		-		127,875	 	 -	 127,875
CHANGE IN NET POSITION		541,880		280,633	1,115,316	154,606	2,092,435
NET POSITION, beginning	:	26,657,511		32,279,017	 13,002,303	 464,257	 72,403,088
NET POSITION, end of year	\$	27,199,391	\$	32,559,650	\$ 14,117,619	\$ 618,863	\$ 74,495,523

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

# COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY – ENTERPRISE FUNDS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Ν	Vothstar Water	Ма	artis Valley Water	Sewer	So	olid Waste	Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES								
Cash received from customers	\$	2,484,799	\$	1,890,332	\$ 3,067,157	\$	626,807	\$ 8,069,095
Payments for services and supplies		(881,883)		(721,712)	(1,533,070)		(438,967)	(3,575,632)
Payments of employee salaries		(261,130)		(183,440)	(88,432)		(21,333)	(554,335)
Payments of employee benefits		(3,991)		(3,111)	(22,200)		(245)	(29,547)
Interfund reimbursements		143,120		45,288	62,347		14,920	265,675
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities		1,480,915		1,027,357	1,485,802		181,182	4,175,256
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES								
Acquisition and construction of capital assets		(16,109)		(188,727)	(10,186)		(1,572)	(216,594)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities		(16,109)		(188,727)	(10,186)		(1,572)	(216,594)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES								
Sale (purchase) of investments		(582,113)		(629,702)	(845,524)		-	(2,057,339)
Interest received		131,216		85,979	82,924		-	300,119
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities		(450,897)		(415,848)	(762,600)		-	(1,629,345)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH		1,013,909		422,782	713,016		179,610	2,329,317
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year		3,788,944		2,720,786	4,856,499		(116,435)	11,249,794
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year	\$	4,802,853	\$	3,143,568	\$ 5,569,515	\$	63,175	\$ 13,579,111
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) T OPERATING ACTIVITIES	'O NE	T CASH PR	OVI	DED BY				
Operating income (loss)	\$	696,331	\$	328,648	\$ 1,231,794	\$	154,606	\$ 2,411,379
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:								
Depreciation		643,392		586,147	232,040		13,294	1,474,873
(Increase) decrease in:								
Accounts receivable		10,259		64,145	86,748		(949)	160,203
Due from other governments		-		-	(4,281)		(1,311)	(5,592)
Prepaid expenses		600		1,005	44		-	1,649
Increase (decrease) in:								
Accounts payable		(16,907)		3,524	(1,593)		9	(14,967)
Accrued wages		4,122		1,601	1,849		613	8,185
Deferred revenue		-		(3,001)	-		-	(3,001)
Compensated absences		143,118		45,288	(60,799)		14,920	142,527

\$ 1,480,915

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

\$ 1,027,357

\$ 1,485,802

\$ 4,175,256

\$ 181,182

### STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FIDUCIARY FUNDS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	Balance ne 30, 2021	F	Receipts	Disbu	sements	Balance ne 30, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents						
Series 2005 Bonds	\$ 1,647,958	\$	632,288	\$	-	\$ 2,280,246
Series 2006 Bonds	658,833		673		-	659,506
2014 Refunding Bonds	 38,038		39		-	 38,077
Total assets	\$ 2,344,829		633,000	\$	-	\$ 2,977,829
<b>LIABILITIES</b>						
Due to others	\$ 2,344,829	\$	633,000	\$	-	\$ 2,977,829

# **APPENDIX B**

Fund Balances for Fiscal Year 2021-22

# Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 Fund Balances

Fund	Balance as of 6/30/2022	Balance as of 9/2/2022 <sup>(1)</sup>
Special Tax Fund <sup>(2)</sup>	¢1 000 405 21	¢1.006.006.00
Special Tax Account	\$1,899,425.31	\$1,886,296.30
2005 Interest Account	\$0.00	\$0.00
2006 Interest Account	\$0.00	\$0.00
2014 Interest Account	\$0.00	\$0.00
Reserve Fund		
2005 Reserve Account	\$13,081.94	\$13,114.12
2006 Reserve Account	\$659,505.72	\$661,127.49
2014 Reserve Account	\$38,077.24	\$38,170.89
Total - Reserve Fund <sup>(3)</sup>	\$710,664.90	\$712,412.50
Administrative Expense Fund	\$0.01	\$0.01
Surplus Fund	\$0.00	\$0.00
Acquisition and Construction Fu	nd	
2005 Construction Account	\$1,171,891.32	\$1,174,773.10
2006 Construction Account	\$349,810.80	\$350,671.02
2014 Construction Account	\$0.00	\$0.00
2005 Acquisition Account	\$0.00	\$0.00
2006 Acquisition Account	\$11,537.51	\$11,565.87
2014 Acquisition Account	\$0.00	\$0.00

(1) Fund balances are reported after the debt service payment date.

(2) Costs of Issuance, Principal, and Capitalized Interest accounts with \$0 balances are omitted.

Source: UMB Bank, N.A. as compiled by Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc.

<sup>(3)</sup> Although amounts in the Reserve Account have been allocated to particular Series of Bonds in order to facilitate the tracking of interest earnings for arbitrage calculation purposes, all such amounts secure all Series of Bonds without any priority of one over another.

# **APPENDIX C**

Delinquency Information for Fiscal Year 2021-22

# Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 Delinquencies as of 6/16/2022

Assessor's	Amount	Date of First
Parcel Number	<b>Delinquent</b> /1	Delinquency
103-190-002-530	\$2,435.52	December 10, 2015
103-190-003-570	\$3,100.83	April 10, 2013
103-190-003-600	\$2,637.56	December 10, 2013
103-190-021-000	\$8,427.82	December 10, 2020
110-051-004-000	\$80,934.62	December 10, 2019
110-051-005-000	\$895,853.72	December 10, 2018
110-051-006-000	\$807,401.72	December 10, 2018
110-051-007-000	\$895,853.72	December 10, 2018
110-051-008-000	\$627,056.74	December 10, 2018
110-051-009-000	\$173,591.88	December 10, 2020
110-051-010-000	\$902,735.46	December 10, 2018
110-051-013-000	\$838,369.58	December 10, 2018
110-051-015-000	\$6,507,538.56	December 10, 2018
110-051-018-000	\$4,316,332.28	December 10, 2018
110-051-019-000	\$1,117,886.66	December 10, 2018
110-051-047-000	\$3,966,748.60	December 10, 2018
110-051-049-000	\$2,926,591.04	December 10, 2021
110-081-017-000	\$122,596.20	December 10, 2018
110-400-005-000	\$3,832,507.04	December 10, 2018
114-020-004-000	\$1,438,421.22	December 10, 2017
114-070-006-000	\$6,074.56	December 10, 2021
114-080-003-000	\$3,294.69	April 10, 2022
114-080-005-000	\$6,074.56	December 10, 2021
114-100-002-000	\$3,961.74	April 10, 2022
114-100-011-000	\$376,367.88	December 10, 2021
114-130-004-000	\$8,532.98	December 10, 2021
114-130-007-000	\$4,875.98	April 10, 2022
706-203-000-000	\$5,787.24	December 10, 2020
706-204-000-000	\$5,611.96	December 10, 2017

#### Total

#### \$29,887,602.36

/1 The amount delinquent is exclusive of late charges and monthly penalties.

Sources: County of Placer; Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc.

# **APPENDIX D**

Estimated Value-to-Lien Ratios for Fiscal Year 2022-23

### Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 Estimated Value-to-Lien Ratios

	Planned		Assessed	Maximum Special Tax Levy at	Percentage of Total Maximum Special Tax Levy	Lien of	Estimated Value-to-Lien
Location	Development	Owner	Value (1)	Buildout (2)	at Buildout	Bonds (3)	Ratio
The Village							
Residential	350 units	Individual Purchasers	\$327,808,306	\$1,702,199	18.91%	\$18,505,719	17.71:1
	0 units	Developer (4)	\$0	\$0	0.00%	\$0	0.00 : 1
Non-Residential	94,961 sq.ft.		\$24,501,391	\$41,501	0.46%	\$451,181	54.30 : 1
Mountainside							
Residential	233 units	Individual Purchasers	\$286,793,464	\$1,555,858	17.29%	\$16,914,747	16.96 : 1
	674 units	Developer (4)	\$7,301,179	\$5,675,666	63.06%	\$61,703,871	0.12:1
Hotel	219,308 sq.ft.		\$58,400,000	\$25,695	0.29%	\$279,352	209.06 : 1
Total Residential	1,257 units (5)		\$621,902,949	\$8,933,724	99.25%	\$97,124,337	6.40 : 1
Total Non-Residential	314,269 sq.ft.		\$82,901,391	\$67,196	0.75%	\$730,533	113.48 : 1
Total			\$704,804,340	\$9,000,920	100.00%	\$97,854,870	7.20:1

(1) Assessed values are based on the Placer County secured roll for fiscal year 2022-23.

(2) Represents Maximum Special Taxes anticipated at build-out based on Special Tax rates for fiscal year 2022-23.

(3) Allocation of lien associated with the Bonds is based on the applicable Maximum Special Tax.

(4) Includes affiliates owning property as of January 1, 2022.

(5) Current estimates from the Developer suggest a total of approximately 1,257 units. Does not include 22 parcels for which the special tax has been prepaid.

Sources: Placer County Assessor's Office, Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc.

# **APPENDIX E**

Updated Table 9 from the Series 2014 Bonds Official Statement

# Table 9 Northstar Community Services District Community Facilities District No. 1 Value-to-Lien Summary

Value-to-Lien Category	Number Taxab Parce	ble	Fiscal Year 2022-23 Base Actual Special Tax (1)	Percent of Base Actual Special Tax	Fiscal Year 2022-23 Assessed Value	Pro Rata Share of CFD Bonds (2)	Assessed Value-to- Lien (3)
30.00 : 1 and above	1	53	\$523,529	6.21%	\$286,555,869	\$6,075,802	47.16
20.00 : 1 to 29.99 : 1	1	37	\$738,060	8.75%	\$216,024,507	\$8,565,532	25.22
10.00 : 1 to 19.99 : 1	1	59	\$737,208	8.74%	\$132,716,560	\$8,555,652	15.51
5.00 : 1 to 9.99 : 1	1	57	\$508,927	6.04%	\$48,959,221	\$5,906,337	8.29
3.00 : 1 to 4.99 : 1		16	\$23,453	0.28%	\$1,050,033	\$272,183	3.86
2.00 : 1 to 2.99 : 1		2	\$379,576	4.50%	\$8,841,691	\$4,405,164	2.01
Less than 2.00 : 1		30	\$5,521,032	65.48%	\$10,656,459	\$64,074,202	0.17
Total	6	54	\$8,431,785	100.00%	\$704,804,340	\$97,854,870	7.20
Parcels with Less than 2.00 : 1 Assessed Value-to-Lien							
Description	Owner	Expected Units					
Lot 10A-II	The Developer	0	\$0	0.00%	\$67,275	\$0	N/A
Lot 10E	The Developer	36	\$203,791	2.42%	\$84,093	\$2,365,090	0.04
Lot 8A	The Developer	32	\$181,147	2.15%	\$88,298	\$2,102,302	0.04
Lot 9F	The Developer	36	\$203,791	2.42%	\$84,093	\$2,365,090	0.04
Lot 9D	The Developer	24	\$135,861	1.61%	\$94,606	\$1,576,727	0.0
Lot 9E	The Developer	6	\$37,362	0.44%	\$115,629	\$433,600	0.27
Lot 10A-I	The Developer	36	\$203,791	2.42%	\$91,452	\$2,365,090	0.0
Lot 4	The Developer	32	\$181,147	2.15%	\$6,306	\$2,102,302	0.0
Lot 2B & 2C	The Developer	178	\$1,007,633	11.95%	\$2,365,149	\$11,694,056	0.2
Mid Mountain Townhomes	The Developer	20	\$124,539	1.48%	\$37,842	\$1,445,333	0.0
Lot 10G or Glades Condos	The Developer	84	\$475,512	5.64%	\$4,015,500	\$5,518,543	0.7
SE Highlands	The Developer	53	\$1,404,047	16.65%	\$188,584	\$16,294,634	0.0
NE Highlands	The Developer	127	\$725,622	8.61%	\$54,660	\$8,421,186	0.0
Northside P3	N*ADVENTURES LLC	14	\$91,860	1.09%	\$1,572,638	\$1,066,079	1.4
Highlands P2	ACM NORTHSTAR HOLDINGS II LLC	50	\$281,904	3.34%	\$1,782,642	\$3,271,634	0.5
Lot 9C	The Developer	10	\$263,025	3.12%	\$7,692	\$3,052,534	0.0
		738	\$5,521,032	65.48%	\$10,656,459	\$64,074,202	0.1

 No backup special tax was levied on parcels of Undeveloped Property in fiscal year 2022-23.
 Allocated based on the proportionate share of base actual fiscal year 2022-23 special taxes and \$97,854,870 outstanding principal amount of CFD bonds.
 Calculated by dividing "Assessed Value" by "Pro Rata Share of CFD Bonds". Assessed Value-to-lien ratio does not include overlapping general obligation bonds secured by ad valorem taxes on the property.

Sources: Placer County Assessor's Office, Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc.

# **APPENDIX F**

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission Mello-Roos Yearly Fiscal Status Reports for Fiscal Year 2021-22



Information as of Reporting Year End: 06/30/2022

Issuance	
Issuer Name:	Northstar Community Services District CFD No 1
Issue Name:	2005 Special Tax Bonds
Project Name:	The Village
Actual Sale Date:	12/08/2005
Settlement Date:	12/08/2005
Original Principal Amount:	\$56,125,000.00
Date of Filing:	10/27/2022
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance:	Yes
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance Amount:	\$10,662,750.00
Credit Rating from Report of Final Sale	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating from Mello-Roos Last Yearly Fiscal Status Report	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating for This Reporting Period	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	



<b>.</b>		
Hit1	ch	•
T.1	ιcπ	

Moody's:

Other:

### **Fund Balance**

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding:	\$47,137,316.40
Bond Reserve Fund:	\$710,664.90
Capitalized Interest Fund:	\$0.00
Construction Fund(s):	\$1,171,891.32

# **Assessed Value**

Assessed or Appraised Value Reported as of:	07/01/2022
Use Appraised Value only in first year or before annual tax roll billing commences:	From Equalized Tax Roll
Total Assessed Value of All Parcels:	\$704,804,340.00

# **Tax Collection**

Total Amount of Special Taxes Due Annually:	\$12,585,273.54
Total Amount of Unpaid Special Taxes Annually:	\$9,652,309.09
Does this agency participate in the County's Teeter Plan?	No

# **Delinquent Reporting**

Delinquent Parcel Information Reported as of Equalized Tax Roll of:	06/16/2022
Total Number of Delinquent Parcels:	29
Total Amount of Special Taxes Due on Delinquent Parcels:	\$29,887,602.36

# Foreclosure

Date Foreclosure Commenced	Total Number of Foreclosure Parcels	Total Amount of Tax on Foreclosure Parcels
10/17/2018	2	\$1,444,033.18
01/16/2019	14	\$28,011,997.82



# **Retired Issues**

Indicate Reason for Retirement:	Not Retired
Filing Contact	
Filing Contact Name:	Andrew Bavender
Agency/Organization Name:	Goodwin Consulting Group Inc
Address:	333 University Ave
City:	Sacramento
State:	СА
Zip Code:	95825
Telephone:	916-5610890
Fax Number:	
E-mail:	andrew@goodwinconsultinggroup.net
Comments	

IssuerShared Reserve Fund between CDIAC #s 2005-1575, 2006-1389, 2014-0954. The individual reserveComments:fund balance for this bond issue was \$13,081.94 as of June 30, 2022.



Information as of Reporting Year End: 06/30/2022

Issuance	
Issuer Name:	Northstar Community Services District CFD No 1
Issue Name:	2006 Special Tax Bonds
Project Name:	The Village
Actual Sale Date:	12/07/2006
Settlement Date:	12/07/2006
Original Principal Amount:	\$58,590,000.00
Date of Filing:	10/27/2022
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance:	Yes
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance Amount:	\$10,662,750.00
Credit Rating from Report of Final Sale	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating from Mello-Roos Last Yearly Fiscal Status Report	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating for This Reporting Period	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	



<b>.</b>	. 1	
H1'	teh	•
11	ιcπ	

Moody's:

Other:

### **Fund Balance**

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding:	\$41,378,234.67
Bond Reserve Fund:	\$710,664.90
Capitalized Interest Fund:	\$0.00
Construction Fund(s):	\$361,348.31

# **Assessed Value**

Assessed or Appraised Value Reported as of:	07/01/2022
Use Appraised Value only in first year or before annual tax roll billing commences:	From Equalized Tax Roll
Total Assessed Value of All Parcels:	\$704,804,340.00

# **Tax Collection**

Total Amount of Special Taxes Due Annually:	\$12,585,273.54
Total Amount of Unpaid Special Taxes Annually:	\$9,652,309.09
Does this agency participate in the County's Teeter Plan?	No

# **Delinquent Reporting**

Delinquent Parcel Information Reported as of Equalized Tax Roll of:	06/16/2022
Total Number of Delinquent Parcels:	29
Total Amount of Special Taxes Due on Delinquent Parcels:	\$29,887,602.36

# Foreclosure

Date Foreclosure Commenced	Total Number of Foreclosure Parcels	Total Amount of Tax on Foreclosure Parcels
10/17/2018	2	\$1,444,033.18
01/16/2019	14	\$28,011,997.82



# **Retired Issues**

Indicate Reason for Retirement:	Not Retired
Filing Contact	
Filing Contact Name:	Andrew Bavender
Agency/Organization Name:	Goodwin Consulting Group Inc
Address:	333 University Ave
City:	Sacramento
State:	СА
Zip Code:	95825
Telephone:	916-5610890
Fax Number:	
E-mail:	andrew@goodwinconsultinggroup.net
Comments	

IssuerShared Reserve Fund between CDIAC #s 2005-1575, 2006-1389, 2014-0954. The individual reserveComments:fund balance for this 2006 bond issue was \$659,505.72 as of June 30, 2022.



Information as of Reporting Year End: 06/30/2022

Issuance	
Issuer Name:	Northstar Community Services District CFD No 1
Issue Name:	2014 Special Tax Ref Bonds
Project Name:	The Village
Actual Sale Date:	07/24/2014
Settlement Date:	07/30/2014
Original Principal Amount:	\$19,320,000.00
Date of Filing:	10/27/2022
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance:	Yes
Reserve Fund Minimum Balance Amount:	\$10,662,750.00
Credit Rating from Report of Final Sale	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating from Mello-Roos Last Yearly Fiscal Status Report	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	
Fitch:	
Moody's:	
Other:	
Credit Rating for This Reporting Period	
Credit Rating:	Not Rated
Standard & Poor:	



Ьù	to	h	•
T. T	w	11	

Moody's:

Other:

### **Fund Balance**

Principal Amount of Bonds Outstanding:	\$9,339,319.12
Bond Reserve Fund:	\$710,664.90
Capitalized Interest Fund:	\$0.00
Construction Fund(s):	\$0.00

# **Assessed Value**

Assessed or Appraised Value Reported as of:	07/01/2022
Use Appraised Value only in first year or before annual tax roll billing commences:	From Equalized Tax Roll
Total Assessed Value of All Parcels:	\$704,804,340.00

# **Tax Collection**

Total Amount of Special Taxes Due Annually:	\$12,585,273.54
Total Amount of Unpaid Special Taxes Annually:	\$9,652,309.09
Does this agency participate in the County's Teeter Plan?	No

# **Delinquent Reporting**

Delinquent Parcel Information Reported as of Equalized Tax Roll of:	06/16/2022
Total Number of Delinquent Parcels:	29
Total Amount of Special Taxes Due on Delinquent Parcels:	\$29,887,602.36

# Foreclosure

Date Foreclosure Commenced	Total Number of Foreclosure Parcels	Total Amount of Tax on Foreclosure Parcels
10/17/2018	2	\$1,444,033.18
01/16/2019	14	\$28,011,997.82



# **Retired Issues**

Indicate Reason for Retirement:	Not Retired
Filing Contact	
Filing Contact Name:	Andrew Bavender
Agency/Organization Name:	Goodwin Consulting Group Inc
Address:	333 University Ave
City:	Sacramento
State:	СА
Zip Code:	95825
Telephone:	916-5610890
Fax Number:	
E-mail:	andrew@goodwinconsultinggroup.net
Comments	

IssuerShared Reserve Fund between CDIAC #s 2005-1575, 2006-1389, 2014-0954. The individual reserveComments:fund balance for this 2014 bond issue was \$38,077.24 as of June 30, 2022.